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Perennial International Limited is dedicated to maintain the EREETRARBNIREREEER - K&
high quality of its products, manufacturing processes and service A EBE  URFETURAERREG -

to customers and to forge a worldwide reputation as a business BREINRSEE  BEBERZERE =5
demanding excellence in all of its operations. IR o
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The Perennial Group, founded in 1989, manufactures and trades

quality power cord, power cord sets, cables and solid wire, wire
harnesses and plastic resins. The Group’s primary markets are
America, Europe, Australia, Mainland China, Japan and Southeast
Asia where it sells to prominent multi-national producers of
electrical and electronic products.

Headquartered in Hong Kong, the Group employs approximately
1,300 staff worldwide involved in management, sales and
marketing, shipping, procurement, financial and accounting,
research and development, production and manufacturing. The
Group considers its employees to be its most important asset
while its key values are quality, prudence and integrity.
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Chairman’s Statement X%

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), | am pleased
to announce the audited consolidated financial results of
Perennial International Limited (the “Company”), together with its

subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31st December 2011.

The Group's revenue was HK$472,445,000 (2010:
HK$477,320,000). Profit for the year was HK$15,275,000
compared to HK$37,754,000 in 2010 (Restated), down 60%.
Earnings per share were HK$0.077 (2010 (Restated): HK$0.190).

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.02 per share. Together with the interim dividend
of HK$0.01 per share, the Group's total dividend for the year 2011
amount to HK$0.03 per share (2010: HK$0.07 per share).

The proposed final dividend is subject to approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting to be
held on 18th May 2012 (“2012 AGM"), is to be payable on 8th
June 2012 to shareholders whose names appear on the Register
of Members on 28th May 2012.

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the

following periods:

(i) from 16th May 2012 to 18th May 2012, both days inclusive
and during which period no share transfer will be effected,
for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the 2012 AGM. In order to be eligible
to attend vote at the 2012 AGM, all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged for registration with the Company's branch share
registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15th May
2012; and
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Chairman’s Statement £ EHR &

FINAL DIVIDEND (CONTINUED)
(i) from 24th May 2012 to 28th May 2012, both days inclusive

and during which period no share transfer will be effected,
for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend. In order to establish
entitlements to the proposed final dividend, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch
share registrars, Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23rd
May 2012.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Sales in power cord and power cord sets, cables and wires, wire
harnesses and plastic resins accounted for 59%, 12%, 28% and
1% of the Group’s total turnover, respectively, in this financial
year.

Our company continued to remain profitable for the year 2011,
despite a challenging year of continued economic uncertainty
resulting from the European sovereign debt crisis and rising costs
of labour and raw materials. Also, a prudent provision is made for
the outstanding debt of a customer which has currently financial
difficulty make the drop in profit.

Manufacturers in the Mainland China faced challenging operating
environments throughout the year under review. A trifecta of
increased running costs resulting from highly volatile commodity
prices; rising costs of complying with Chinese labour and
environmental legislation; and, the appreciation of Renminbi, has
exerted pressure on the Group’s profit margin.

To mitigate the effect of rising operational costs in China, the
Group has continued to pursue effective hedging strategies
against rising commodity prices and to capitalise on ‘lean
manufacturing’ strategies, increasing automation and rationalising

the workforce to augment operational efficiency.
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Chairman’s Statement X%

BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)

The Group's unwavering commitment to the quality of our
products and providing value for customers remains unchanged,
despite the current difficult economic climes. We differentiate
ourselves by having a quality products and have chosen not
to partake in the unsustainable price cutting adopted by some
competitors. This strategy proved hugely successful in the latter
half of the year on the retention of customers who recognised the

quality products we provide.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

Given the uncertain economic environment, cautiously optimistic
on the global economic environment will improve gradually in
2012.

Inflationary pressures on costs will likely remain with the
continuing appreciation of the Renminbi, making improving
margins a challenging task. Our approach is to improve operational
efficiency, by using independent accounting for each department
to reduce labour costs. All these measures help us continue to

create great value for our customers and shareholders.

We are facing an uncertain business environment, with prolonged
economic recovery seen in the United States and the tightening
of credit resulting from the European sovereign debt crises.
Nevertheless, the Group remains optimistic about its long-term
prospects and has strong cash-flow and adequate reserves to face

any upcoming challenges and business risk.

Our core strategy remains creating value for our customers.
We endeavour to continue providing high quality products at

competitive prices.

The Group is also dedicated to producing environmentally-
sound products. We will continue to invest in the research
and development of eco-friendly products in order to meet the

European Union’s new environmental protection regulations.
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Chairman’s Statement £ EHR &

FUTURE PROSPECTS (CONTINUED)

The United States remains the Group’s primary overseas market.
It is our goal to develop new revenue driver for the Group by

expanding into other overseas markets in the near future.

On the human resources front, we will continue to attract and
retain talent through the provision of competitive remuneration
packages, employee recognition, seniority-based benefits, training
programmes as well as leisure and recreation facilities for staff.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to safeguarding shareholders’ rights
and enhancing corporate governance standard. As a result,
we establish the Compliance Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee to adhere
to the best practice.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Being a responsible corporate citizen is the Group's strong belief.
So we continue to participate in and support community activities
in both Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China.

VOTE OF THANKS

On behalf of the Board of Directors, my sincere thanks to our loyal
shareholders, partners and customers for their continuous support
and to our staff for their dedication.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March 2012

AREE ()
ERNAZARBOREZEIHNTS - KM
B B AR T A M0 16 3 B 0 Bt 8 50 353 3
AR B M OR ©

EATERAE  AEEGEBIRHARS
7 FEN - HEFAST TURE 7L

FERAGIE - ZHFIIFE  HZBTHK
BRNMREM T EHEEBIRARBELEE
T o

EER

REBMBR N EERRER @ RITEEERK
ool HFRLERE C B

g FHMEZREERREREER
Bl

‘m]u W
Bl
8

HEsEMT

REERFED M- XEETHNRE I
NEKAPIFEL M R EE R E ARKM
Bl R4t &5 E) -

6|
RAABRERESE  ABANBRE - B
BEFREINSNSE  RRROEH -

EEEGMD
*TE
Bz

‘A ZF-F=A=t=H

Annual Report 2011 —2——&&% 9



Management Discussion and Analysis S E &5 & 2 17

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

At the end of December 2011, the consolidated short-term
indebtedness of the Group was HK$115,681,000. The borrowings
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. The bank balances and
cash amounted to HK$108,142,000.

At the end of December 2011, the Group’s trade receivables
balance was HK$102,177,000, representing 21.6% of the year's
turnover of HK$472,445,000. The Group adopted a stringent credit
policy to minimize credit risk.

The interest cover was 10.8 times as compared to 39.4 times in
2010.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

As at 31st December 2011, the consolidated shareholders’ equity
of the Group was HK$383,027,000, an increase of 5.8% over that
of the previous year. The debt to equity ratio, calculated by dividing
total liabilities to shareholders’ equity, was approximately 49.0%.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS

During the year under review, capital expenditures were
approximate to HK$2,800,000.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31st December 2011, the Group’s banking facilities
amounting to approximately HK$97,681,000 were secured
by legal charges over certain land and buildings, and
investment property of the Group with a total net book value of
HK$120,900,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis 2 B ih R 2T

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year under review, Hong Kong, America and the
Mainland China continued to be the Group's major markets,
accounting for approximately 45%, 30% and 18% of the Group's
total sales respectively. The remaining 7% of sales were
generated from customers located in Other Asian Countries and

Europe.

EMPLOYEES' REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31st December 2011, the Group employed approximately

1,300 full time management, administrative and production staff
worldwide. The Group follows market practice on remuneration
packages. Employee’s remuneration is reviewed and determined
by senior management annually depending on the employee’s
performance, experience and industry practice. The Group invests
in its human capital. In addition to on-job training, the Group adopts
policies of continuous professional training programs.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

All foreseeable foreign exchange risks of the Group are
appropriately managed and hedged.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31st December 2011, the Group did not have any material

contingent liabilities.
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Corporate Governance Report 1~ ¥ &8 &

Perennial International Limited is firmly committed to statutory
and regulatory corporate governance standards with emphasis
on transparency, independence, accountability, responsibility and

fairness.

THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

PRACTICES
With effect from 1st January 2005, the Company has applied

the principles and complied with the requirements of the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”).

The Directors confirm that the Company fully complies to the
Code Provisions, and adopts Recommended Best Practices as
defined in Appendix 14 of the Rules governing the Listing of

Securities appropriately when possible.

THE BOARD

The Board’'s primary role is to protect and enhance long-term
shareholder value. It sets the overall strategy for the Group and
supervises executive management to whom the responsibility of
managing the day-to-day operation of the Group is delegated. In
the course of discharging its duties, the Board acts in integrity, due
diligence and care, and in the best interests of the Company and
its shareholders.

The Board oversees the Company in a responsible and effective
manner. It has adopted formal terms of reference which details
its functions and responsibilities. Its main responsibilities include,
but not limited to, ensuring competent management, approving
objectives, strategies and business plans, ensuring prudent
conduct of operations within laws and approved policies, ensuring
and monitoring integrity in the Company’s conduct of affairs.
Directors, as members of the Board, jointly share responsibility for

the proper direction of the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (¥ EaHE

THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

The Board currently consists of nine (9) members whose details
are set out on pages 26 and 29. It meets quarterly and holds
specific meetings as and when they are deemed necessary.
The Board held four (4) meetings during the year ended 31st
December 2011. A record of the Directors’ attendance at Board
meetings is set out on page 22 of this report.

The Group provides extensive background information about its
history, mission and businesses to Directors. The directors are
also provided with the opportunity to visit the Group's operational
facilities and meet with the management to gain a better
understanding of its business operations.

The Board has separate and independent access to the senior
management and the Company Secretary at all times. The Board
also has access to independent professional advice where

appropriate.

The Company has arranged for appropriate liability insurance
for the directors and the senior management of the Group for
indemnifying their liabilities arising out of corporate activities. The

insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

In order to reinforce his independence, accountability and area of
responsibility, the role of the Chairman is separate from that of
the Chief Executive Officer. Their respective responsibilities are
clearly established and set out in writing. The Chairman manages
the Board, while the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
implementing strategies, policies, and for conducting the Group's
businesses.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the
Directors that have served longest on the Board must retire at
each annual general meeting, and may offer themselves for re-
election. Each Director is subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years. To enhance accountability, any further re-
appointment of an Independent Non-Executive Director, who has
served the Board for more than nine years, is subject to a separate
resolution as passed by the shareholders.
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THE BOARD (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company
has acknowledges receipt of a written confirmation from each of
the Independent Non-Executive Directors for confirmation of his
independence to the Company. The Company considers all its

Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent.

RESPONSIBILITES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board should present a balanced, clear and comprehensible
assessment of the Company’s and the Group’s performance,
position and prospects. The directors should prepare the
financial statements on a going concern basis, with supporting
assumptions or qualifications as necessary. The board’s
responsibility to present a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment extends to annual and interim reports, other price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures required
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules, and reports to regulators
as well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to

statutory requirements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four (4) committees, each of them
having specific terms of reference, to consider matters relating to
specialized areas and to advise the Board or, where appropriate,
to decide on behalf of the Board on such matters. Details of these

committees and their principal terms of reference are as follows:

AUDIT COMMITTEE
The Audit Committee was established on 1st April 2003. Its

current members included three (3) Independent Non-Executive

Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee have been revised
to meet the requirements set out in the Code (effective 23rd
March 2009).

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditors and any
question of resignation or dismissal, their audit fees, matters
relating to the independence of the external auditor; meeting
with the external auditor to discuss the nature and scope of the
audit, and matters of concern when requested to do so by the
external auditor; reviewing the interim financial report and annual
financial statements before they are submitted to the Board;
discussing problems and reservations arising from the interim
review and final audit, and any other matters the external auditor
may wish to discuss, and reviewing the external auditor’ letter to
the management and the management’s response; reviewing the
internal audit programmes and ensuring co-ordination between
the internal and external auditors, and ensuring that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group; and considering any findings of major
investigations of internal control matters as delegated by the

Board or on its own initiative and management'’s response.

The Audit Committee meets at least twice a year, while at
least once a year it meets with the external auditor without
Executive Directors being present. The Audit Committee held
two (2) meetings during the year ended 31st December 2011. An
attendance record of its members at Audit Committee meetings

is set out on page 22 of this report.

During the year, the Audit Committee reviewed the interim
financial report and the audited financial results of the Group for
the year ended 31st December 2011 and the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company's
internal control systems and made recommendations to the
Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members included three (3) Independent Non-

Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the Group's remuneration policies, determining the specific
remuneration packages for directors and senior management,
including terms of salary, discretionary bonus scheme, benefits in
kind, pension rights, compensation payments and other long-term
incentive schemes, and making recommendations to the Board on

remuneration of the directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee met two (2) times in the year of
2011. During the meetings, the committee members discussed
the policy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors and
senior management, assessed the performance of the Executive
Directors and approved the terms of the Executive Directors’
service contracts. An attendance record of its members at the
Remuneration Committee meetings is set out on page 22 of this

report.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 21st November
2005. Its current members included three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors and one (1) Non-Executive Director, who are:

Mr. LAU Chun Kay (Chairman)
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the board on a regular basis,
reviewing the candidates’ qualification and competence, and
making recommendations to the Board on appointment of
Directors, so as to ensure that all nominations are fair and

transparent.

The Nomination Committee met one time (1) in the year of
2011. During the meetings, the committee members discussed
the procedures and criteria which should be adopted by them
in nominating candidates for directorship and agreed that such
criteria should include the candidates’ professional background,
their financial and commercial experience and their past track
record with other listed companies (if any). Candidates who satisfy
the relevant criteria are then short-listed by the chairman of the
Nomination Committee before their nominations are proposed
to the Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee
subsequently meets to select the final candidates and submit its
recommendation to the Board for its final approval. An attendance
record of its members at the Nomination Committee meeting is
set out on page 22 of this report.

COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE

The Compliance Committee was established on 25th November
2005. Its current members included five (5) Executive Directors,
one (1) Non-Executive Director and three (3) Independent Non-
Executive Directors, who are:

Executive Directors

Mr. MON Chung Hung
Ms. LI Man Wai

Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco
Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky
Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)
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COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard

The Compliance Committee is mainly responsible for (i) reviewing
corporate communication issued by the Company so as to
ensure compliance in every respect with the listing requirements
contained in the Listing Rules; and (ii) reviewing transactions
entered into by the Company so as to ensure compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Company whether
of Hong Kong or elsewhere. Where necessary, the Compliance
Committee would seek professional advice in respect of the
requirements of the Listing Rules and other applicable laws and
regulations so as to improve the existing compliance procedures
of the Company.

The Compliance Committee held one (1) meeting during the year
ended 31st December 2011. An attendance record of its members
at the Compliance Committee meeting is set out on page 22 of

this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for internal control of the Group and
for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been designed
for safeguarding assets against unauthorized use or disposition,
ensuring the maintenance of proper accounting records for the
provision of reliable financial information for internal use or for
publication, and ensuring compliance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The procedures provide reasonable but not

absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)
The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the

effectiveness of the Group's internal control system covering all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions and, in particular,
consider the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group accounting and financial reporting function,
and their training programmes and budget. Areas for improvement
have been identified and appropriate measures taken so as to
provide assurance that key business and operational risks are

identified and managed.

The key procedures that the Board established to provide effective

internal controls are as follows:

(@) A comprehensive monthly management reporting system
is in place providing financial and operational performance
indicators to the management, and the relevant financial

information for reporting and disclosure purpose;

(b)  Management structure with defined roles, responsibilities
and reporting lines are established. Delegated authorities are
documented and communicated;

(c) System and procedures are in place to identify, measure,
manage and control risks including liquidity, credit, market,
business, regulatory, operational and reputational risks that

may have an impact on the Group; and

(d) Internal Audit Team performs reviews of the risks and
key controls to provide reasonable assurance to the
management and the Audit Committee that risks and

controls have been adequately addressed.

The function of the Internal Audit Team is mainly responsible
for monitoring the internal control system of the Group. The
Internal Audit Team covers financial controls, business operations,
compliance and risk management. Reports are submitted to the

Audit Committee on a regular basis.
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EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors
subject to endorsement by the Board and final approval and
authorization by shareholders of the Company in general meeting.
The Audit Committee assesses the external auditors, taking into
account factors such as the performance and quality of the audit
and the objectivity and independence of auditor. The existing
auditor of the Company are PricewaterhouseCoopers who was

first appointed in 1997.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The Group was charged HK$1,350,000 and HK$471,000 by

PricewaterhouseCoopers for auditing and non-auditing services

respectively for the year ended 31st December 2011.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board, supported by the accounts department, is responsible
for the preparation of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group. In preparing the financial statements, the Board has
adopted generally accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong
and complied with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Appropriate accounting

policies have also been used and applied consistently.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditors are set out
in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 38 and 39 of this

annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listing Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Having made specific
enquiry of all Directors, they had complied with the required

standards of the said code during the year.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Board and management shall ensure shareholders’ rights
and all shareholders are treated equitably and fairly. Pursuant to
the Company’s bye-laws, any shareholder entitled to attend and
vote at a general meeting of the Company is entitled to appoint
another person as his proxy to attend and vote instead of him.
Shareholders who hold not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company shall have the right, by written requisition
to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company, to
require a special general meeting to be called by the Board for the

transaction of any business specified in such requisition.

Chairmen of the various Board committees, or failing the
Chairmen, any member from the respective committees, must
attend the annual general meetings of the Company to address
shareholders’ queries. External auditor shall also be invited to
attend the Company’s annual general meetings and are available
to assist the Directors in addresing queries from shareholders
relating to the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content

of their auditor report.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company believes in regular and timely communication with
shareholders as part of its efforts to help shareholders understand

its business better and the way the Company operates.

To promote effective communication with the public at large,
the Company maintains a website on which comprehensive
information about the Company, its major businesses,
financial information and particulars of Directors are posted.
The Company's publications, including press releases,
announcements, annual and interim reports, shareholders
circulars are being made available on this website (http://www.
equitynet.com.hk/0725)
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EENEEE BRZEES - T
ZEE  REZEEREREES
Z HiFE R 8%

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AT BOARD,
AUDIT COMMITTEE, REMUNERATION
COMMITTEE, NOMINATION COMMITTEE
AND COMPLIANCE COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Audit Remuneration Nomination Compliance

Board  Committee Committee =~ Committee Committee
Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings  Meetings
g ERZEE FHzEe REZ8E EXZEg
E L i E kS
Total number of meetings held RBE-Z—F
during the year ended +-A=+—H
31st December 2011 LEERETY
QREH 4 2 2 1 1
Number of meetings attended: HESRERY
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. MON Chung Hung AR E

(Chief Executive Officer & Deputy (7743 k&) E)

Chairman) 3 N/A i N/A TNEA N/A i 1
Ms. LI Man Wai ESer e 4 N/A i N/A TE A N/A i 1
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco RIBATE 4 N/A @A N/A T EF N/A &R 1
Ms. MON Wiai Ki, Vicky HERLLT 3 N/A T N/A TNE N/A T 1
Ms. MON Tiffany HERLLT 3 N/A i N/A TNE A N/A T 1
Non-Executive Director FHTES
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise BEZzt

(Chairman) (£E) 4 2 2 1 1
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES

Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay BIRESEAE 2 2 1 1
Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones FRERE 2 2 1 1
Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard SEELE 2 1 1 1
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited

financial statements for the year ended 31st December 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of electric cable and wire products. The activities of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by
geographical segments is set out in note 4 to the financial
statements.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the
last five financial years is set out below:

EXgENREETHENBE_T——F
TZA=Z+T—ALEFEZEERMBERE

REETEBERMIGE S 2D

ARBZEBEBRITEER  ENEQA
TENRFRENEEERNERERE -
I8 AR 2 XN IRKRMEST -

AEEAFERIZHRE D ZEBDBR
BRI EHRRMT LS -

TEHBEHRE
TEBERAEEEBRERENT £  BE
REERE

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
“FTLE -TRN\F “TTAF —FT-FF —F——F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T FHT
Revenue Yoz 470,496 507,628 411,192 477,320 472,445
Profit for the year E2oinvil 24,398 22,294 29,634 37,754 15,275
Total assets BEE 392,971 364,065 418,810 479,710 570,875
Total liabilities mafl (180,285) (127,654) (100,127) (117,728) (187,848)
Total equity MR 212,686 236,411 318,683 361,982 383,027

Comparative figures in 2010 and 2009 have been restated to
reflect the adoption of HKAS12 (Amendment).

ANALYSIS OF THE GROUP’S PERFORMANCE

An analysis of the Group's performance is shown in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 9.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers, classified by individual

entity, are as follows:

IBRRFRHER
AEENFER EBHBHRES - UUE

AEBDBZERBMEEAILMT

%

Purchases s
— the largest supplier — & AHIERE
— five largest suppliers combined — R RHERE

Sales SHE

— the largest customer —BAEF
— five largest customers combined —RAARF

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the
Company's share capital) had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers noted above.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated

income statement account on page 40.

The Directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.01 per
ordinary share, totaling approximately HK$1,990,000 which was
paid on 9th September 2011.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$

0.02 per ordinary share, totaling approximately HK$3,980,000.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of share capital of the Company are set out in note 21 to

the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 45 to 46 and note 22 to the financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31st December 2011, the distributable reserves of the
Company amounted to HK$104,406,000.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to HK$1,342,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights

under the laws of Bermuda.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,

redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, it is confirmed that
there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of the

annual report.
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ANALYSIS OF BANK LOANS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The Group's bank loans and other borrowings as at 31st

December 2011 are repayable over the following periods:

RITERRHEMEED T

REER -_ZE——F+-A=+—HZRT
ERREMERAN T HRER

Trust
Bank loans receipt loan Total
RITEMN WEER Fob o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHT
On demand or not exceeding one year BIEiEES—FEN(EE 56,000 59,681 115,681
More than one year but not —F LA BT BBRE
exceeding two years - - -
More than two years but not MEL BT BRRF
exceeding five years - - -
More than five years HERE - - -
56,000 59,681 115,681
DIRECTORS =

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report

were:

Executive Directors

Mr. MON Chung Hung (Chief Executive Officer & Deputy Chairman)
Ms. LI Man Wai

Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco

Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky

Ms. MON Tiffany

Non-Executive Director
Ms. KOO Di An, Louise (Chairman)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. LAU Chun Kay

Mr. LEE Chung Nai, Jones

Mr. MA Chun Hon, Richard
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
Mr. SIU Yuk Shing, Marco, Ms. MON Wai Ki, Vicky and Mr.

LAU Chun Kay will retire in accordance with clause 111 of the
Company’s Bye-laws at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company and, being eligible, all offer themselves for re-

election.

The term of office of each non-executive and independent
non-executive director is not more than 3 years and subject to
retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company’s bye-

laws.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the directors and senior management

of the Company are set out as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Mon Chung Hung, aged 61, is the founder of the Group,
the Chief Executive Officer, the Deputy Chairman, an Executive
Director and a member of the compliance committee of the
Company. Mr. Mon has over 34 years of experience in the electric
cable and wire industry. He is responsible for the Group's overall
strategic planning and policy making. Mr. Mon is a director of
Spector Holdings Limited, the controlling shareholder of the
Company. He is also the husband of Ms. Koo Di An, Louise and the
father of Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky and Ms. Mon Tiffany.

Ms. Li Man Wai, FCCA, FCPA, aged 57, is an Executive Director
and a member of the compliance committee of the Company. Ms.
Li is a Fellow Member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants of the United Kingdom and a Fellow Member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She
joined the Group in 2001 and has over 36 years of experience
as a senior executive in finance, accounting and administration
of manufacturing, trading and servicing industries in Asia
particularly Mainland China. She is also experienced in sales and
marketing. She is mainly responsible for the Group’s finance and
administration.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Siu Yuk Shing, Marco, aged 52, is an Executive Director and a
member of the compliance committee of the Company. He joined
the Group in 1986. Mr. Siu has over 24 years of experience in the
electric cable and wire industry. Mr. Siu is also the Sales Director
of the Group and is responsible for sales of the Group’s products

and product development.

Ms. Mon Wai Ki, Vicky, aged 37, is an Executive Director and
a member of the compliance committee of the Company. She
graduated from the Central Queensland University in Australia
with a Bachelor of Communications degree. She joined the
Group in 2004. As the Marketing Executive, she participates in
developing marketing strategies. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon
Chung Hung, and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the elder sister of
Ms. Mon Tiffany.

Ms. Mon Tiffany, aged 31, is an Executive Director and a member
of the compliance committee of the Company. She holds a
bachelor’'s double major degree in Economics and Management
from the University of Sydney, Australia. She joined the Group
in 2002. As the Marketing Communications Manager she
coordinates marketing strategies and is also responsible for the
computer department. She is the daughter of Mr. Mon Chung
Hung and Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, and the younger sister of Ms.
Mon Wai Ki, Vicky.

Non-Executive Director

Ms. Koo Di An, Louise, aged 60, is the Chairman, a Non-Executive
Director, the chairman of the compliance committee and a
member of the audit, remuneration and nomination committees of
the Company. Ms. Koo is a director of Spector Holdings Limited,
the controlling shareholder of the Company. She is also the wife
of Mr. Mon Chung Hung and the mother of Ms Mon Wai Ki, Vicky
and Ms. Mon Tiffany.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Chun Kay, B.Sc., MBA, MA, aged 63, is an Independent
Non-Executive Director, the chairman of the audit, remuneration
and nomination committees and a member of the compliance
committee of the Company. He joined the Group in 1996. Mr. Lau
is a registered professional engineer and holds a master’s degree
in business administration and a bachelor’s degree in electrical
engineering from the University of Hong Kong, and a master
degree in history from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. Mr.
Lau is a Life President of the Hong Kong Electrical Contractors
Association, and a past President and current Secretary General
of The Federation of Asian and Pacific Electrical Contractors
Associations. He is also the Executive Secretary of the Hong Kong
Federation of Electrical and Mechanical Contractors. He has over

41 years of experience in management and engineering.

Mr. Lee Chung Nai, Jones, aged 63 is a Non-Executive Director
and a member of the audit, remuneration, nomination and
compliance committees of the Company. Mr. Lee had over 30
years experience in International Trade in toys, among which Mr.
Lee had also operated a toys factory with 2,000 workers in China
for 10 years. Mr. Lee had also operated a subsidiary company in
Hong Kong for 2 years for a listed company in Australia. Mr. Lee
is now having his own toy company with one branch office in the
USA and one branch office in Australia.

Mr. Ma Chun Hon Richard, aged 55, is an Independent Non-
Executive Director and a member of the audit, remuneration,
nomination and compliance committees of the Company. He
joined the Group in February 2006. Mr. Ma has been practicing as
a Public Accountant in Australia since 1988. He holds a bachelor
degree of Commerce from University of New South Wales major
in Accounting. Mr. Ma is an Member of the Australian Certified
Public Practising Accountants and a Fellow Member of the
Taxation Institute of Australia.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Senior Management

Ms. Wong Wai Ping, aged 60, is the Group’s General Manager and
is responsible for sales and marketing activities. She joined the
Group in 1993 and has over 37 years of experience in the electric
cable and wire industry and electronics and communications

industry.

Mr. Mok Kin Kwan, FCCA, HKICPA, aged 41, is the Group Finance
Manager and Company Secretary and is responsible for finance
functions and the Company Secretary work. He join the Group
in 2007, holds a Master’s in Finance and has over 16 years of

experience in accounting and auditing.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Executive Directors

The Company has not entered into any service contract which
is not determinable within one year and without payment of

compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to
which the Company, its holding company or its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, existed at the end of the year or at any time

during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

At 31st December 2011, the interests of the directors and chief
executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any associated corporation (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFQ") as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company were as
follows:

(a) Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

EERGHNzER

ARDF - HIERA R REM B AT YL |AT 7
AR ERRFREMBRAER - BRAD
REBBEAMEREFEARREAES
HESHERAEARSZAK -

EERIETTRABRBARES
%
RZE—F+-_A=+—H BEZFEEK
S EA3521& 2 REMFE 2 =M
B AAREEREBZITRABEARALR
HiB LB (EE LESMEERHIZEXVEL)
2D - ARG MEFTEE 2R - 3K
RATIEZEEBNZEERIT

(a) XATEROI0BT2EBER (K

(“Shares”) i)
Total interests
Number of shares as % of the
RAEEA relevant
Personal Family Corporate Other Total  issued share
Name interests interests interests interests interests capital
BRERLAE
{EN E EE Hith BRTRA
®E G 4 BR Bi B RS ZBAL
MON Chung Hung - - 146,128,000 - 146,128,000 73.45%
AR (note 1#IzE1)
KOO Di An, Louise - 146,128,000 - - 146,128,000 73.45%
g (note 2/i7£2)
LI Man Wai 2,558,000 - - - 2,558,000 1.29%
e
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco 300,000 - - - 300,000 0.15%
K
LAU Chun Kay 138,000 - - - 138,000 0.07%
BIREL
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

32

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

(“Shares”) (continued)

note 1: The 146,128,000 Shares were held in the name of Spector Holdings
Limited, the issued share capital of which is beneficially owned as
10 99.9% by Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining 0.1% by
Ms. Koo Di An, Louise.

note 2: Ms. Koo Di An, Louise is the wife of Mr. Mon Chung Hung. Ms. Koo

is thus deemed to be interested in 146,128,000 Shares by virtue of
her husband's interest therein.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As
at 31st December 2011, no short positions were recorded
in the Register of Interests in Shares and Short Positions of
substantial shareholders required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO.

Share options

At a special general meeting of the Company held on 23rd
April 2003 (“Adoption Date”), resolutions had been passed
to terminate the share option scheme adopted on 5th
December 1996 (the “1996 Scheme”) and to adopt a new
share option scheme (the “2003 Scheme”) for the benefit
of employees and Directors of the Company. The principal
purposes of the 2003 Scheme are to enable the Group and
its invested entities to recruit and retain high calibre eligible
persons and attract human resources that are valuable to
the Group or invested entities, to recognise the significant
contributions of the eligible persons to the growth of the
Group or invested entities and to further motivate and give
incentives to these eligible persons to continue to contribute
to the long term success and prosperity of the Group or

invested entities.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERTETBRAERRAEHES

INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES HHZER (F)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Share options (continued) (b) HEEBEREE @
The principal terms of the 2003 Scheme are summarized as ZEE=FFHEZFERFTETNAT
follows:
(i)  Eligible person (i) BEBBAL

(ii)

Any employee (whether full time or part time), senior
executive or officer, manager, Director (including
Executive, Non-Executive and Independent Non-
Executive Director) or consultant of any members
of the Group or any invested entity who in the sole
discretion of the directors, have contributed or will
contribute to the growth and development of the

Group or any invested entity.

Maximum number of shares

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2003
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the
Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue at the Adoption Date (i.e. 19,895,800
shares on the basis of 198,958,000 shares in issue
as at the Adoption Date) unless the Company obtains
a fresh approval from its shareholders. Such shares
represent 10% of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the date of this annual report.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the 2003 Scheme and any
other share option scheme(s) of the Company shall not
in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from
time to time. No option may be granted under the 2003
Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of the

Company if such limit is exceeded.

HESHEETHAKESEM
BRERBZBELRERBAER
KW EFHEMZANEEEM
B SHERMRERRZ A2
BARBES  SRITBAERL
BE KB ER(BEATE
F FRTEERBUFNTE
=) M -

(i)  =ERGEHE
ATE ST =FE kA RAA
EREMERESEMEL 22
ERERRNE - HO] FERITRMG B
TR RN B BB BT D
2 10% (IREBERRMA B2 B %
7TR% 1 198,958,000 i 5+ & - %
10% 2 f& 5 PR EN19,895,800/%
B ) - BRIEARAQFEGHRRR
ZEFRUE o ZEROEERA
FHRABZBEETRMDA10% °
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EEMBERESSMETER
RITHE 2B HAl F#TZ
B BB LR SHEE TR
TR D 2 30% = fif 68 H it iR
B ATSBRE-_ZFT=F:3
RA DB AR R 8 F
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES

(CONTINUED)
(b) Share options (continued)

34

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Maximum entitlement of each grantee

Unless separately approved by shareholders, the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each eligible person in any
12-month period must not exceed one (1) per cent. of

the shares in issue.

Option period

The option period shall be notified by the Board to each
grantee upon grant of each option, provided that it
shall commence on a date not earlier than the date on
which the option is granted or deemed to be granted
in accordance with the terms of the 2003 Scheme
("Commencement Date”) and not be more than 10

years from the Commencement Date.

Amount payable on application or acceptance

The eligible person must accept any such offer notified
to him or her within 10 business days from the date
on which an offer is made to an eligible person, which
must be a business day (" Offer Date”), failing which
it shall be deemed to have been rejected. Upon
acceptance of the offer, the grantee shall pay HK$1.00
to the Company as consideration for the grant.

Subscription price

The subscription price shall be a price determined by
the Directors at its absolute discretion and notified to
an eligible person and shall not be less than the highest
of (1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the
daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
Offer Date; (2) the average closing price of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations
sheets for the 5 business days immediately preceding

the Offer Date; and (3) the nominal value of a Share.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ EERFETHAERRASER
INTERESTS IN EQUITY OR DEBT SECURITIES HHZED (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Share options (continued) (b) EERRFE @)
(vii)  Term of the 2003 Scheme i) —FEE=F;Z|ZHR
The 2003 Scheme will remain in force for a period of ZEE=F5 A2 BRI B R
10 years commencing from the Adoption Date, after HEEE 5 - HIZE TR’
which no further options shall be granted but the IEREHERE R T =F
options which are granted during the life of the 2003 STEIFHRNERL 2 EBRESA
Scheme may continue to be exercisable in accordance BERE _TT=F 82817
with their terms of issue and the provisions of the 2003 BERTLAITEE - M_EE =55
Scheme shall in all other respects remain in full force ,J{—EﬁﬂxﬁﬁZ%ﬁmﬂ—r B
and effect in respect thereof. B+ B8N RIER -
Up to 31st December 2011, no options have been granted HE-_Z——F+-A=+—0" &
under the 1996 Scheme or the 2003 Scheme. REBRB-NANARFHEAN—ZE=

GBI L B (TRRARE -

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was 1 4 N /N B e S )
the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any & A FEARF AR AE H E A=
arrangements to enable the directors or chief executives of FEARBESTHEZTHAELRS
the Company or any of their associates to acquire benefits AT IR A+ E R AR R RS A A
by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the FRVEANEE 2 RD R ES M o

Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

Other than the interests of the directors and chief executives of
the Company as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2011, the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO records interests (as defined in the SFO) in the Company

of the following corporation.

Number of shares

FERRRAQBRAE 2 s

BREXFHRBEZARAEERERITHAR
2RI RZF——F+-A=+—8"
RIBEFLEGDIEIBCIKEZREMFE
ZERMARE - A NEEBAERRRZH#E
@ (ERRLEARLBPERD) -

Total interests
as % of the

RAEE relevant

Personal Family Corporate Other Total  issued share

Name interests interests interests interests interests capital
BIEREEE

fAA Rik Hitr ERTRA

®E G Bi B B ZBAL
Spector Holdings Limited 146,128,000 - - 146,128,000 73.45%
Fang Zhun Chun F1&% 9,958,000 - - 9,958,000 5.00%

The share capital of the above company is owned as to 99.9% by
Mr. Mon Chung Hung and as to the remaining 0.1% by Ms. Koo
Di An, Louise.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at
31st December 2011, no short positions were recorded in the
Register of Interests in Shares and Short Positions of substantial
shareholders required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the directors are aware,
there were no person who, as at 31st December 2011, directly
or indirectly held or was beneficially interested in shares
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the

Company or its subsidiaries.

As at 23rd March 2012, being the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this report, approximately 25.05% of the issued
capital of the Company is held by the public as required by Rule
8.08 of the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the directors have an interest in any business constituting
a competing business to the Group.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

By Order of the Board
Koo Di An, Louise
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd March 2012
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To the shareholders of Perennial International Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Perennial
International Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 40 to 123, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31st December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. \WWe do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are

free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating

the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

\We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31st December 2011, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the

disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23rd March 2012

BB EME (&)

B RAITRRF UNERE BSEMBEHER
Fﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁi&?&éééﬁﬂﬂ’ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ Fri& E &Y
2 FF BUR T i BUAD 1 B - SRS BN
FRERMEBRG AP BRI FEEAHER
PO R - AR SRR - ZBEE
BEZ R B RERA ﬁﬂ%iﬁ%%f’ﬁﬁjﬁﬁ

RNFHRRIBRE R A ERIES] - AREHEE
FEitiEF o BEMYIEHAR TW*BT LRSS
BUEBRKRER B TEERFIEEZTAR

REst BN B REL S ENAE
M ARFESZAVBERROEEI R
e

HFIAEE - HPIFESHETREELETEM
EEHRRANBERRHER -

ER
BMRE  ZERAUMBRRERBRESR B
HREENEEMAFHRE BAF
kR BEER-_ZE——F+-_A=1+—B&
EHEMRR - R EEEBEZB EFEHT
BRBESRE - WEIRBEBCRFHEHDE
BERTEZRRR -

_“}

Uﬂ$}

\

B S UK B AT
R BT

B - ——#=AZ-+=H

Annual Report 2011 —2——&&% 39



Consolidated Income Statement ZR &5 Binic

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z —ZE——F+ - HA=+—HILF/Z

Restated

B

2011 2010

—E——fF —E—TF

Note HK$’000 HK$'000

HieF FBT FBT

Revenue ek 4 472,445 477,320
Cost of sales SHERA (402,696) (379,951)
Gross profit EA 69,749 97,369
Other income H bz 5 5,365 4,153
Distribution expenses vk =liib-3 (8,328) (8,461)
Administrative expenses TERAXZ (45,143) (46,645)
Other operating expenses, net H 4 & 2 558 (4,559) (1,729)
Operating profit Sl 6 17,084 44,687
Finance costs Hi5E A 7 (1,584) (1,133)
Profit before taxation FR A% A& A 15,500 43,654
Taxation I8 8 (225) (5,800)
Profit for the year AREF T 9 15,275 37,754
Basic and diluted earnings per share (cents) ®MEAR R E#EEZF (1) 11 7.7 19.0

Details of proposed final dividend payable to shareholders of the AN/ A [ A% B HE R 35 R HA IR B 2 BE IS SR T

Company are set out in note 10. F10°
The notes on pages 48 to 123 are an integral part of these F A8 E 123 EWIMIFE R e M 15 R MRS
consolidated financial statements. 1 o
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 44 2 H@ &R

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F 1+ - HA=+—HIFF/Z

Restated
KET
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAxT
Profit for the year REE @A 15,275 37,754
Other comprehensive income / (l0ss): Hih2mEkes (FAX) :
Revaluation surplus on land and buildings T RIEF 2 BhAR 15,868 16,031
Deferred tax charged to revaluation reserve ik Bk {7#E 2 ELEFE (2,959) (2,815)
Exchange difference arising from translation HB A ARk 2 Kk
of financial statements of subsidiaries ZEERER 4,801 4,269
Other comprehensive income for the year, ANFEEMEEIKRZE @ 0%
net of tax I8 17,710 17,485
Total comprehensive income attributable A RIRER R 42 2 T e
to shareholders of the Company 32,985 505, 232)
The notes on pages 48 to 123 are an integral part of these FA8E 123 BRI FE R G M5 R AR

consolidated financial statements. B ©
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ZR& B1i& it R =

As at 31st December 2011 R=-F——F+_-A=+—H

42

Perennial International Limited 1E&f&E AR A 7

Restated Restated
E5| vl
31st December 31st December 1st January
2011 2010 2010
—E2——F —TTF T
+=A=+t-8 +=A=+—H —A—H8
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
{023 TEx THT TAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Land use rights TR 14 13,353 13,457 13,589
Property, plant and equipment e 15 236,153 223,975 209,267
Investment property BEY 16 13,800 11,000 9,000
Non-current deposits E A 2,624 1,153 247
Deferred tax assets BERIBEE 8(b) 3,214 2,131 2,181
269,144 251,716 234,284
Current assets MEBEE
Inventories =& 18 80,540 83,454 64,412
Trade receivables FEWE 5 BR 3K 19 102,177 102,966 87,586
Other receivables, deposits HEWERR - 5T
and prepayments KR 8,160 8,964 3,235
Taxation recoverable EEERE 2,712 - -
Cash and cash equivalents RekASEEY 20 108,142 32,610 29,293
301,731 227,994 184,526
Total assets BEE 570,875 479,710 418,810
EQUITY R
Share capital BRAN 21 19,896 19,896 19,896
Other reserves H &l 22 139,003 121,293 103,808
Retained earnings RE &
Others Hitb 22 220,148 210,843 187,019
Proposed final dividend BORAREIRE 22 3,980 9,950 7,960
Total equity en ... 383,027 R 361982 318,683
LIABILITIES =1
Non-current liabilities FnRBEE
Obligations under finance TR & R
lease contracts - - 2,056
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIAR R 8(b) 21,769 19,347 16,797
21,769 19,347 18,8563



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 4 B i8R &=

As at 31st December 2011 R-FE——Ff+_H=+—H

Restated Restated
Tl KB
31st December 31st December 1st January
2011 2010 2010
—E2——F —E-TF T
+=B=+—-B +=ZA=+—8H —A—A
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HisF FTAR FHT T
Current liabilities mEAaE
Trade payables T E 5508 24 29,621 33,194 31,585
Other payables and accruals Hit B REFRY 24 19,983 21,575 19,463
Derivative financial instruments fTESmMIA 25 794 - -
Taxation payable HiIE - 2,349 3,417
Current portion of obligations under ~ FAEE A A)FdE—ER
finance lease contracts fE(EiR%E 23 - 2,056 2,227
Current portion of long-term REORITER
bank loans —FREEERE 23 - = 252
Short-term bank loans RERITER 23 56,000 - =
Trust receipt loans EEBBEER 23 59,681 39,207 24,330
] 166079 98381 81,274
Total liabilities AR 7 187,848 117,728 100,127
Total equity and liabilities BiEERAEE 570,875 479,710 418,810
Net current assets B EEFE 135,652 129,613 103,252
Total assets less current liabilities ~ #@ZERGEEE 404,796 381,329 337,536
On behalf of the Board EREEE®
MON Chung Hung LI Man Wai
=R E3°q
Director Director
EFE EE
The notes on pages 48 to 123 are an integral part of these FA8E 123 BRI FE R G M5 R AR
consolidated financial statements. B o
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Statement of Financial Position Bl &R 3=

As at 31st December 2011 R=-F——F+_-A=+—H

2011 2010
—B——F —FFF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Kzt FET THT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets EMEBNEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZIEE 17 62738 62,738
Current assets MENEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE U B BB A B FIE 17 61,439 66,632
Other receivables, deposits HMEWER - fTek
and prepayments TEETFIE 229 210
Cash and cash equivalents Re RBSEEY 20 159 201
... 51827 [ ¥ 67,043
Total assets BEE 124,565 129,781
EQUITY xR
Share capital f&Zx 21 19,896 19,896
Other reserves HAob 22 78,537 78,537
Retained earnings REB &R
Others HAth 22 21,889 21,066
Proposed final dividend FORAREARR B 22 3,980 9,950
Total equity S 124,302 129,449
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities MEEE
Other payables and accruals HtENRIE R ERT AT 24 263 332
Total liabilities BEE 283 332
Total equity and liabilities BERNEEE 124,565 129,781
Net current assets MEEEFE 61,564 66,711
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERMBAE 124,302 129,449
On behalf of the Board REEESD
MON Chung Hung LI Man Wai
TR Z
Director Director
EZE EZ

The notes on pages 48 to 123 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

B -
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t of Changes in Equity Zr &

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #F —F——4%+ ==

\

Other
Share reserves Retained
capital (note 22) earnings Total
Hithf s
B (Hz22) REEF ok
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TiEx TEx
As at 1st January 2011 n=E—%—-A—H
- as previous reported —JAEEF] 19,896 121,293 219,753 360,942
— adoption of HKAS 12 —FREBEER 12
(Amendment) (note 1.1) (BB 1.1) - - 1,040 1,040
As at 1st January 2011 (Restated) R=Z—F—A—H(&KE5) 19,896 121,293 220,793 361,982
Profit for the year KEE & - - 15,275 15,275
Revaluation surplus on land and buildings THREF ERRS - 15,868 - 15,868
Deferred tax charged to revaluation reserve B EHAHZETHE - (2,959) - (2,959)
Exchange difference arising from translation ~ FiBAREHHRE 2
of financial statements of subsidiaries SR EREZE - 4,801 - 4,801
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEBREYHE - 17,710 15,275 32,985
Dividend paid B - - (11,940) (11,940)
At 31st December 2011 R-E——&+-A=1—H 19,896 139,003 224128 383,027
Representing: THER:
2011 final dividend proposed 2 —FRRE KRS 3,980
Others Ht 220,148
Retained earnings BE-T—4f+-A=t-AL
as at 31st December 2011 ZIRBER 224,128
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity fRe =S B R

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z —ZE——F+ - HA=+—HILF/Z

Other
Share reserves Retained
capital (note 22) eamnings Total
it
Bfn (PEE22) REBF Fk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL T AT T
As at 1st January 2010 W=E-Z5-A—H
- as previous reported —MAEZS 19,896 103,808 194,269 317,973
— adoption of HKAS 12 —FRABEHEA2
{Amendment) (note 1.1) () (Ft3E1.1) - - 710 710
As at 1st January 2010 (Restated) RZE—2F—F—R (&F7) 19,896 103,808 194,979 318,683
Profit for the year (Restated) AEERF (LE5) - - 37,754 37,754
Revaluation surplus on land and buildings T REF EERS - 16,031 - 16,031
Deferred tax charged to revaluation reserve B EERES ZETHE = (2,815) - (2,815)
Exchange difference arising from translation ~ MiBARE % 2
of financial statements of subsidiaries AR ERER - 4,269 - 4,269
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEBREYR - 17,485 37,754 55,239
Dividend paid ) = = (11,940) (11,940)
At 31st December 2010 RZZ-FF+-A=1—H 19,896 121,293 220,793 361,982
Representing: HER:
2010 final dividend proposed T -SERRECRERE 9,950
Others Hith 210,843
Retained earnings HE-Z-ZET-A=+—-ALL
as at 31st December 2010 ZIREBF 220,793

F48E 123N REAMBRROER

B

The notes on pages 48 to 123 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows SR8 E£RER

For the year ended 31st December 2011

BE_F——F+-HA=7 HILFE

2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Hiet THET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities EETENRERE
Net cash generated from operations SEELEMNFRS 26(a) 25,024 17,028
Hong Kong profits tax paid XA EEFEH (4,377) (5,597)
Overseas tax paid S RpisEl lTEy (2,530) (1,486)
Interest received WERAI.S 309 4
Net cash generated from operating activities SELHMANTHRS 18,426 9,949
Cash flows from investing activities RETBNRERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BENE  BEKRR (2,800) (929)
Deposits paid for additions of equipment TR 2 FT (1,471) (5,294)
Sale of property, plant and equipment HEYE « BE K& 149 253
Net cash used in investing activities REARSMRNFRE .. a22) (5,970)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBNRESRE
Net increase in trust receipt loans SRR E R 26(b) 20,474 14,877
Net repayments of FEERS
long-term bank loans RITER 26(b) - (252)
Increase in short-term bank loans LR BRI TR 26(b) 56,000 =
Repayments of capital EBERESL
element of finance lease contracts BARER 26(b) (2,056) (2,227)
Interest of finance lease contracts MBS S (52) (163)
Bank loans interest RITERFE (1,532) (970)
Dividend paid to Company’s shareholders EEVNGES AL, (11,940) (11,940)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RMEEBELS/(FTA)H
financing activities e 60894 (675
Net increase in BEeRBELEENZFEM
cash and cash equivalents 75,198 3,304
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st January FReRREEED 32,610 29,293
Exchange difference on cash Re MR SEYE LK
and cash equivalents 334 13
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st December FXBEERBEZEY 20 108,142 32,610
The notes on pages 48 to 123 are an integral part of these FA8E 123 BRI FE R G M5 R AR

consolidated financial statements.

BB
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 7R3 {5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F+ - HA=+—HILF/Z

48

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") unless
otherwise stated.

1.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of land and buildings,
investment property and derivative financial
instruments which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 3.

The adoption of new and amended standards and
interpretations of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards that are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2011 did not result in
a significant impact on the results and financial position
of the Group.

(a) At the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the following are new
standards, amendments and interpretations that
are published and potentially relevant to the
Group’s operations, but not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group:

° HKAS 1 (Amendment) 'Presentation of
financial statements’ (effective for the
Group for annual periods beginning on or
after 1st July 2012).

Perennial International Limited 1E&f&E AR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 % 3R 3R M &

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z _—F——F+ - H=1+—HIFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) ‘Separate financial
statements’ (effective for the Group for
annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013).

HKFRS 9 'Financial instruments:
Disclosures’ (effective for the Group for
annual periods beginning 1st January
2013).

HKFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial
statement’ (effective for the Group for
annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January 2013).

HKFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of interests in other
entities’ (effective for the Group for annual
periods beginning on or after 1st January
2013).

HKFRS 13 ‘Fair value measurement’
(effective for the Group for annual periods
beginning on or after 1st January 2013).

Except for the early adoption of HKAS 12
(Amendment) listed as below, the adoption
of the above standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards in future
periods is not expected to result in substantial
changes to the Group's accounting policies.

The Group has early adopted HKAS 12
(Amendment) that is effective for the financial
year ended after 1st January 2011.

1. FESHBEERE @)

1.1 wREEE
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& k=R {5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #ZF —F——4#1+ = F=+—HIFFZ

1.

50

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

In December 2010, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants promulgated HKAS 12
(Amendment), ‘Income taxes — Deferred tax: recovery

of underlying assets’, to introduce an exception to

the principle for the measurement of deferred tax
assets or liabilities arising on an investment property
measured at fair value. HKAS 12 requires an entity
to measure the deferred tax relating to an asset
depending on whether the entity expects to recover
the carrying amount of the asset through use or sale.
The amendment introduces a rebuttable presumption
that an investment property measured at fair value
is recovered entirely by sale. The amendment is
applicable retrospectively to annual periods beginning
on or after 1st January 2012 with early adoption

permitted.

The Group has early adopted this amendment
retrospectively for the financial year ended 31st
December 2011 and the effects of adoption are

disclosed as follows.

The Group has investment property measured
at the fair values amounting to HK$13,800,000
(31st December 2010: HK$11,000,000) as of 31st
December 2011. As required by the amendment, the
Group has re-measured the deferred tax relating to the
investment property according to the tax consequence
on the presumption that it is recovered entirely by
sale retrospectively. The comparative figures for 2010
have been restated to reflect the change in accounting

policy are as below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B iRk st

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #ZE —F——#+=-H=+—HI F&E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESHBERBE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 1.1 HHEEE@®)

Effect on consolidated statement of financial position: FREPBRAROTZE

31st December

31st December

1st January

2011 2010 2010
—E——F “E-TF —E-TF
+=ZA=+-B +=A=t+—H —A—8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FAT
Decrease in liability: BERD
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities EERHE RS 1,502 1,040 710
Increase in equity: fEAEIE
Increase in retained earnings TRE BFIE N 1,502 1,040 710
Effect on consolidated income statement: REEmRRTE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Decrease in taxation R 462 330
Increase in profit for the year N [ 5 )38 00 462 330
Effect on earnings per share: BRANMZE
2011 2010
—E—-% —T-TF
HKS$ cents HKS$ cents
il b Il
Increase in earnings per share FRRETIE N 0.2 0.2
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 7R3 {5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F+ - HA=+—HILF/Z

1.

52

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31st December.

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when

assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Profits and losses resulting from inter-
company transactions that are recognised in assets
are also eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure

consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position the
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
provision for impairment of losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the

basis of dividends received and receivable.

Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& R R iz

For the year ended 31st December 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.3 Segment reporting

14

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments.

Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Functional and presentation currency

Iltems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

BE—F——Ff - A=1T—HIFE

FESHBERE @)

1.3

1.4
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& k=R {5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F+ - HA=+—HILF/Z

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESHBERBEE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.4 Foreign currency translation (Continued) 1.4 INEBRE )
(i) Group companies (Continued) (iii)  ZEEH 2 7] ()

(i) income and expenses for each income (i) BEBEmKRIBAKR
statement are translated at an average X RZEE T
exchange rate for the year; and EXHERERE

B R

(i) all resulting exchange differences are (i) FIEELERIGER
recognised as a separate component of R IR A E —1{E 5
equity. I e

On consolidation, exchange differences arising EREIGE T ERERE

from the translation of the net investment in MEBINEBRFIRE -

foreign operations are taken to equity. When a HINARRERIRA © F

foreign operation is sold, exchange differences B —IHBINEBE - &%

that were recorded in equity are recognised in 0 85 PO 1 2 R A B BB =
the consolidated income statement as part of the HERiEEBERRAER
gain or loss on sale. REHEREN—BH -
1.5 Investment property 1.5 REWE
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for BEMFARAEERZESER
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied EEIMERE - RIFAEE
by the Group’s companies, is classified as investment ARATIFMEE @ UEEAREY
property. Investment property comprises land held ¥ REVEBEANLEHRER
under operating leases. Land held under operating EW T LNEEHRERBHN LT
leases is classified and accounted for as investment - R EREVMEERES -
property when the rest of the definition of investment RIREMEDBARGEER °

property is met.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, REMFEREA Z KA - BFEE
including related transaction costs. AR HRAGTE -

B4  Perennial International Limited B8 E AR A T



Notes to the Financial Statements 81 % 3R 3R M &

For the year ended 31st December 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.5

1.6

Investment property (Continued)

After initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. The valuation is reviewed annually by
an external independent valuer on an open market
basis. Separate value is not attributed to land and
buildings. The valuation is incorporated in the financial
statements. Changes in fair values are recognised in

the income statement.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
expensed in the income statement during the financial

period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment
(i) Land and Buildings

Land mainly represents the lands in Hong
Kong under finance lease. Buildings comprise
factories and offices. Land and buildings are
shown at fair value, based on annual valuations
by an external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation and impairment. The
valuations of Hong Kong land and buildings and
Mainland China factories are on an open market
basis or replacement costs. Any accumulated
depreciation and impairment at the date of
revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount

is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

o E——FF = =1 —HILFE

1. FESHBEERE @)

1.5

1.6
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& k=R {5

For the year ended 31st December 2011

1.

56

BHE—FE—— 1 SH= el

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Land and Buildings (Continued)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on
revaluation of land under finance lease and
buildings are credited to land and building
revaluation reserve in equity, except to the
extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
for the same asset previously recognised in the
income statement, in which case the increase
is credited to the income statement to the
extent of the decrease previously charged.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset are charged against the land and
building revaluation reserve directly in equity;
all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement.

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment, comprising
leasehold improvements, plant and machinery,
furniture and fixtures, office equipment, motor
vehicles and pleasure boat are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

Construction in progress is stated at cost
which comprises construction costs, purchase
costs and other related expenses incurred in
connection with the construction of buildings,
plant and machinery for own use, less provision

for impairment losses, if any.

Perennial International Limited 1E&f&E AR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 753z 3R i 5

For the year ended 31st December 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iii)

Depreciation

Depreciation on buildings is calculated to write
off their valuation less accumulated impairment
losses on a straight- line basis over the unexpired
period of the leases or their estimated useful
lives, whichever is shorter. The principal annual

rates used range from 2.5% to 5%.

Other property, plant and equipment except
construction in progress are depreciated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less
accumulated impairment losses over their
estimated useful lives on a reducing balance

basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

2.5% -20% or

lease period,

Leasehold improvements

which ever
is shorter

2.5% - 20%
15% -20%

Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures

Office equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 15% - 20%
Pleasure boat 10%

No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until they are completed and put into
production ready for their intended use, upon
which they will be transferred to property, plant

and equipment.

o E——FF = =1 —HILFE

1. FESHBEERE @)

1.6 Y% BEKRZRE @
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MEMHEERE 2.5%-20%

S FLF

RS 2

52 B
BRER#EE  2.5%-20%
BRREE  15%-20%
WAERE  20%
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iiaiiis 10%
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& k=R {5

For the year ended 31st December 2011

1.

58

BHE—FE—— 1 SH= el

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.6 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Others

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end

of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its

estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals

Gains and losses on disposals are determined
by comparing proceeds with carrying amount.
These are included in the income statement.
Where revalued assets are sold, the amounts
included in buildings revaluation reserve are

transferred to retained earnings.

Perennial International Limited 1E&f&E AR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 % 3R 3R M &

For the year ended 31st December 2011

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.7 Assets under finance lease/operating lease

(i)

(ii)

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the
risks and rewards of ownership are retained
by the lessor are classified as operating lease.
Payments made under operating lease (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged in the income statement on a straight-

line basis over the period of the lease.

Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance lease assets.
Finance lease assets are capitalised at the
commencement of the lease and at the lower
of the fair value of the assets and the present
value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the liability
and finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the outstanding finance balance. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-current
borrowings. The interest element of the finance
cost is recognised in the income statement over
the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance

of the liability for each period.

o E——FF = =1 —HILFE

1. FESHBEERE @)

1.7 HE KEHE

(1)

(i)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& k=R {5

For the year ended 31st December 2011

1.

60

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.8

1.9

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if
any). Cost mainly represents consideration paid for
the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period of 46-50 years
from the date the respective right was granted.
Amortisation of land use rights is calculated on a
straight-line basis over the period of the land use

rights.

Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and
non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are tested
for impairment annually. Assets are reviewed
for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs
to sell and value in use. Such impairment loss is

recognised in the income statement.

1.10 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items
on the first-in, first-out basis and are arrived at as

follows:

(i) Raw materials purchased for use in the
manufacturing process — invoiced price and
shipping cost.

Perennial International Limited 1E&f&E AR A 7
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 % 3R 3R M &

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z _—F——F+ - H=1+—HIFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESHEEFE @)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.10 Inventories (Continued) 1.10 & (@)

(i)~ Work in progress and finished manufactured
goods — costs of direct materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads.

(i) Finished goods purchased for resale — invoiced

price and shipping cost.

Net realisable value is determined on the basis of
anticipated sales proceeds less estimated selling

expenses.

1.11 Trade and other receivables

The Group's trade and other receivables are

categorised as loan and receivable financial assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment. A provision for impairment
of receivables is established when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect
all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivable. The amount of the provision is the
difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows,
discounted at the effective interest rate. The amount
of the provision is recognised in the income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previous written
off are credited in the income statement.

(i) AEHmEEKD-BEER
B BEBESTIRARE
HEERTEN -

(i) FREEAESE S 2 & m —
BEENES o

A S 5 (IR i 5 85 W
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& k=R {5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F+ - HA=+—HILF/Z

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
1.12 Cash and cash equivalents

The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are categorised
as loan and receivable financial assets.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities
of three months or less.

1.13 Trade and other payables

The Group's trade and other payables are categorised

as financial liabilities at amortised cost.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

1.14 Borrowings

The Group's borrowings are categorised as financial

liabilities at amortised cost.

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the

effective interest method.
All borrowing costs are charged to the income

statement in the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B 753z 3R i 5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F1+ - HA=+—HIFF/Z

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.15 Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and
long service leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to
the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time

of leave.

Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payment is
recognised as a liability when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a
reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.
Liabilities for bonus plan are expected to be
settled within twelve months and are measured
at the amounts expected to be paid when they

are settled.

1. FEESTBERBE @)

1.15 EEER

(1)

(i)

ESEZ KLY
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& k=R {5

For the year ended 31st December 2011

1.

64

B E——F = =1 —HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.15 Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii)

Retirement benefit costs

For Hong Kong employees, the Group
contributes to Mandatory Provident Fund
("MPF") scheme in accordance with Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.
Contributions to the MPF scheme by the Group
and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ remuneration received. The Group’s
contributions to MPF scheme are expensed as
incurred. The assets of the MPF scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an

independently administered fund.

For employees in the Mainland China, the Group
contributes to a defined contribution retirement
scheme managed by the local municipal
government in Mainland China. The Group's
contributions to the retirement scheme are
expensed as incurred while the local municipal
government in the Mainland China undertakes to
assume that the retirement benefit obligations of

the qualified employees in Mainland China.

1.16 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current

and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income

statement. The current income tax charge is calculated

on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively

enacted at the end of reporting period in the countries

where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and

generate taxable income. Management periodically

evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to

situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject

to interpretation and establishes provisions where

appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be

paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 81 % 3R 3R M &

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z _—F——F+ - H=1+—HIFZ

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 1. FESFBRBE@

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 1.16 EERIELEFIE (@)

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the financial statements.
However, deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences

can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
except where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

BEIEFTSBA AR EAE EA
BENREREEEMABEY
BREROEEEMEENERZ
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1.17 Revenue recognition 1.17 AR
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration WapiEREEm - AME - A

received or receivable for the sale of goods, interest
income and operating lease rental income in the
ordinary course of the Group's activities. Revenue is
shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discount, and after eliminating sales within the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R =[5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZF——F+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

1.

66

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group recognises revenue when the amount
of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities as described below. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of
transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is recognised as follows:

(i) Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised on
the transfer of risks and rewards of ownership,
which generally coincides with the time when
the goods are delivered to customers and title

has passed.

(i)  Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest

method.

(i)  Operating lease rental income is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

1.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.
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1.

Notes to the Financial Statements 81 753 3R i &

For the year ended 31st December 2011

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.18 Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised as
interest expense.

1.19 Dividend distribution

Final dividend proposed to the Company's
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the financial
statements in the period in which the dividend is
approved by the Company's shareholders.

1.20 Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments are
categorised as financial assets/liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at its fair value. Changes
in the fair value of these derivative instruments that
do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the income statement.
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2.

68

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

1.21 Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the Company to make specified payments
to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because
a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial guarantee
contract issued by the Company and not designed
as at fair value through profit or loss is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the financial
guarantee contract. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Company measures the financial guarantee
contract at the higher of: (i) the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, contingent
liabilities and contingent assets”; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18

"Revenue”.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk,
price risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the

Group's financial performance.

Management regularly manages the financial risks of

the Group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements 1% 3R 3R M &

For the year ended 31st December 2011

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency
risk arising from various currency exposures,
primarily with respect to the Renminbi (“RMB”).
Foreign exchange risk arises from future
commercial transactions, recognised assets
and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. In addition, the conversion of RMB
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the Mainland

China monetary authority.

The Group uses forward contracts to manage
exposures arising from the fluctuation of
RMB. Details are disclosed in note 25 to the

consolidated financial statements.

Should HK$ strengthened/weakened by
5% (2010: 5%) during the years ended 31st
December 2011 against the RMB, with all other
variables held constant, the impact of the profit
after taxation and the equity for the year would
have been approximately HK$3,185,000 (2010:
HK$445,000) higher or lower.

Certain of the assets of the Group are
denominated in United States Dollar (“USD")
but the foreign exchange risk is considered not
significant as HK$ exchange rate is pegged to
USD.

The foreign exchange risk on financial assets and
liabilities denominated in currencies other than
RMB and USD are insignificant to the Group.
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B E——F = =1 —HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Price risk

The Group exposes to fluctuations in the market
price of major raw materials such as copper rods

and chemicals to make plastic resins.

The Group is able to pass certain realised price
gains and losses on raw materials to certain
customers through price adjustments, which
can mitigate the price risk. The Group has not
used any derivative instruments to hedge such

€COoN0OMIC eXPOSUres.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from
bank borrowings. Borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to
fair value interest rate risk. Details of the Group’s
borrowings have been disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has not used any hedging arrangement

to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.

The sensitivity analysis presents the effects on
the Group's profit after taxation for the year as a
result of changes in interest expense on floating
rate borrowings. The sensitivity to interest rate
used is based on market forecasts available
at the reporting date and under the economic
environments in which the Group operates, with
other variables held constant.
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For the year ended 31st December 2011

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Based on the analysis performed, the impact
on the profit after taxation of a 100 basis-point
change in interest rate would be an increase/
decrease of HK$608,000 and HK$554,000 for
the years ended 31st December 2011 and 2010,

respectively.

Credit risk

The Group's bank balances are deposited with
financial institutions with reliable and acceptable
rating quality. Management regularly assesses
the credit risk of these financial institutions by
reviewing their published financial information

and credit rating.

The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from
default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amount of each
financial asset, including cash at bank, trade
and other receivables as disclosed on the

consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group has concentration of credit risk.
Sales made to the top 5 customers amounted
to approximately HK$177,977,000 (2010:
HK$156,000,000), representing 38% (2010:
33%) of total revenue for the year. The total
accounts receivable balance of these top 5
customers as at 31st December 2011 was
HK$44,185,000 (2010: HK$41,361,000).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit
terms and the Group performs periodic credit
check with reference to credit rating performed
by external agents, and makes periodic
assessment of the customers’ payment history
to assess the recoverability of trade receivables
of its customers.

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and making available
and adequate amount of committed credit
facilities with staggered maturities to reduce
refinancing risk in any year and to fund working
capital, debt servicing, dividend payments, new
investments and close out market positions
if required. The Group maintains significant
flexibility to respond to opportunities and events
by ensuring that committed credit lines available.
As at 31st December 2011, the Group had
available banking facilities of HK$265,810,000 of
which HK$115,681,000 were utilised.
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2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(v)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

BE—F——F+= A= i

2. MBEREE @

(a) HBEEEREZE@®

Liquidity risk (Continued) ) TEEZERE
The table below analyses the Group's financial TROMAEENEFE
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial BERAFEEELEENIT
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings EERBE RBEED
based on the remaining period at the end of E|ERAE B - AR IR A RS HA
the reporting date to the contractual maturity EREZEADE AT
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the ERHIEET O - ERA
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances WENSEAS KRR
due within 12 months equal their carrying BIRERE - ARBEH
balances as the impact of discounting is not HERK W E121EA
significant. AR EA 8 45 sR A SN ELBR
HEfE o
Between Between
Within 1and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years
1R 1225R 2Z25%R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FhR T#n FHER
Group pin-- |
At 31st December 2011 R=ZE-—-%+-A=1-H
Short-term bank loans RHBRITER 56,075 - -
Derivative financial instruments fTHESRTA 794 - -
Trust receipt loans ER B ER 59,831 - -
Trade and other payables and accruals & 5 R T 7B R eI 49,604 - -
At 31st December 2010 R=Z-ZF+=-A=1+-H
Short-term bank loans RHBTER - - -
Obligations under finance lease contracts  FEEA #I&IE 2,107 - -
Trust receipt loans EEER 39,321 - -
Trade and other payables and accruals & 5 & E (7B KBRS 54,769 - -
Company b NG|
At 31st December 2011 RZE-—%+-A=1+-H
Other payables and accruals HAt e 508 R R X 263 - -
At 31st December 2010 R-E-ZFE£+-A=1+-H
Other payables and accruals Hity N5 IE R X 332 - -
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HE—FE—— S H= el

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Perennial International Limited 1E&f&E AR A 7

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(v)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table below analyses the Group's derivative

financial instruments which will be settled on

a net basis into relevant maturity grouping

based on the remaining period at the end of

the reporting date to the contractual maturity

date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the

contractual undiscounted cash flows.

2.
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il

Within 1 years

Group

As 31st December 2011

Forward foreign exchange
contracts outflow

As 31st December 2010
Forward foreign exchange
contracts outflow

Capital risk management

%8

R=_ZE——F+=-—A=+—H

EHINEA KR

R=_ZE—ZF+=-_A=+—H

EHINEA KR

The primary objective of the Group’s capital
management is to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, maintain a strong
credit rating and a healthy capital ratio to support the
business and to enhance shareholder value.

—
HK$°000
FH
794
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For the year ended 31st December 2011

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(b)

Capital risk management (Continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and business strategies. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust
the dividend payments to shareholders, issue new
shares or raise and repay debts. The Group's capital
management objectives, policies or processes were
unchanged during the years ended 31st December
2010 and 2011.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as total borrowings divided
by total capital. Total borrowings include non-current
borrowings and current borrowings (note 23). Total

capital includes total borrowings and total equity as shown

BE_F——F - A=1T—HIFE

2. BBEREE @

(b)

EERBRERE @)

SEREELEMRTK B M
REREEMARESLEE &
B AL TREMRE - 8
TETR - REXEEES - &F

WESEEAE  REREFR
PR —EE+=A
=+— B EdE

SENBEREEELE &
Ao b RIZBBIEERNE
o BIEEBRIEERB RREE
E(MisE23) - REABRREE
N s MR RNNAR S ISR

B
R BA

on the consolidated statement of financial position. = o
The gearing ratios at 31st December 2010 and 2011 HE-_T— ?&:T——iﬂ‘:
were as follows: A=+t—RHIEFEABEEELX
AT

Restated

4 &5

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR T

Total borrowings REE 115,681 41,263

Total equity S BRE 383,027 361,982

Total capital FEEEWIN 498,708 403,245

Gearing ratio BEEELR 23% 10%

The increase in the gearing ratio in 2011 is mainly due
to increase in bank loans.

BRRITEFIE B 2011 FE
BEEELEREN -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Fair value estimation

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
and short-term borrowings approximate to their fair
values due to their short-term maturities. The fair
value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual
cash flows at the current market interest rate that is

available to the Group for similar financial instruments.

The Group has derivative financial instruments as
at 31 December 2011. The following table presents
the Group's liabilities that are measured at fair value
and classified by level of the following fair value

measurement hierarchy at 31 December 2011:

1. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

2. Inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

3.  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F 1+ - HA=+—HIFF/Z

2. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 2. BIBEKRERE@m)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Fair value estimation (Continued) (c) DAAREME @
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— k1 F=H @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TAT FET FET
2011 2%
Liabilities afF
Derivative financial instruments FTESRTE
(note 25) (FizE25) - 794 - 79
2010 —T-TF
Assets/(liabilities) BE/(Af)
Derivative financial instruments ITESRTA
(note 25) (BffzE25) - - - -

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the
reporting date. The quoted market price used for
financial assets and liabilities held by the Group is the

current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market is determined by using
valuation techniques. The Group uses a variety of
methods and makes assumptions that are based on
market conditions existing at end of each reporting
period. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for
similar instruments are used for long-term debt. Other
techniques, such as estimated discounted cash flows,
are used to determine fair value for the remaining

financial instruments.

EERTMSEENERTAZA
REREREHERA TSR
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ERABENTEREAEHER
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78

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(a) Taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining
the provision for taxation. Sufficient provisions are
set aside to meet all tax liabilities. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in
which such determination is made.
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For the year ended 31st December 2011

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Estimated fair value of properties

The fair values of investment property, office and
factory buildings are determined at the end of each
reporting period by an independent professional
valuer. The fair value of investment property is
determined on an open market value basis by
reference to comparable market transactions and
where appropriate on the basis of capitalisation of
the net rental income/net income after allowing for
outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for
reversionary income potential. The fair values of office
and factory buildings are determined on an open
market value or depreciated replacement cost basis.
These methodologies are based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions as to income
and expenses of the property and future economic
conditions.

Impairment of trade receivables

Management determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables. This estimate is based
on the credit history of its customers and the current
market condition. Management reassess the provision
at reporting date.
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3.

80

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(¢c) Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

Significant judgement is exercised on the assessment
of the collectability of trade receivables from each
customer. In making its judgement, management
considers a wide range of factors such as results of
follow-up procedures performed by sales personnel,
customer payment trends including subsequent
payments and customers’ financial positions. If
the financial conditions of the customers were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability
to make payments, additional allowances may be
required.

As at 31st December 2011, the Group has made an
impairment provision of HK$6,859,000 (2010: Nil) for
doubtful debt.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of electric cable and wire products. Revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

3.

4.

FAEEHHERBRR @

(c)

P B 5 R AR E R ()

R RS ER ZRBZ AT KM
RER - ITEEAHE - REH
Hies - EREEEEZER D
ISEE A BT 2 RAERR P48
R BEFNRBZ(BELEN
R REPZHBAMR) o HEAR
KEREFPZHBHRRBL B
BEFED R BENFRE - BIFT
BEZRIEHIBRIMESR -

RZBE——F+ZR=+—
A AKBECRRETEBT
6,859,000 (= & — T 4 :
®) -

Wi K o EBE R

AERETELLHUENETERRE
MEMZER - FRTIRKRZKEMT

2011 2010

—E——F —T—TF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FHET

Sale of goods HE 472,445 477,320
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WERDHELR (@)
(CONTINUED)

The Chief Executive Officer (the chief operation decision THABZ(EREERRE)EHNE
maker) has reviewed the Group’s internal reporting and Imiﬁ#ﬁi&ﬁﬁmﬁ::%&%@ﬁuui
determines that there are five reportable segments, based BTRBEEFAEMERES L - B1F
on location of customers under cable and wire products B - PBIARE - EMoEMBIR - =M
business, including Hong Kong, the Mainland China, Other BN o S1E5 502 5 FEEIEEE R
Asian Countries, America and Europe. These segments are MEFRZEE BIRE AL B

managed separately as each segment is subject to risks and
returns that are different from others.

The segment information for the reportable segments for —E——RIETFEREHIH
the 2011 and 2010 are as follows: DEERIT -
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets expenditure Depreciation Amortisation
&
(HEEE) AWEE BAMEE BAMEX wE B
2011 2011 2011 2011 2011 2011

~F--% =F-f =%--% =%-Ff =%-F =F--F

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET T FEx T FEx THx

Hong Kong B 212,663 13,964 250,748 249 3,488 -
Mainland China REIARE 84,385 (2,436) 239,956 2,551 7123 364
Other Asian Countries  E{tiZEMER 33,946 2,120 10,244 - - -
America E 140,393 6,670 52,682 - - -
Europe B 1,058 53 231 - - -
Reportable segment &S S 472,445 20,371 553,861 2,800 10,611 364
Unallocated costs, APEER

net of income MBRIA (3,287)
Operating profit i 17,084
The segment result of the Mainland China include provision R B K RE 9 B0 545 B 4E 6,859,000 7 7T
for doubtful debt of HK$6,859,000. The segment result B RIREEE - A EBERIH H H A
should become profit of HK$4,423,000 if excluding the 23w A% 4,423,000 7T ©

above provision.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R[5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #ZE —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFZE

4. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WHERDEBER (&)
(CONTINUED)
Revenue Total
(external Segment segment Capital
sales) results assets  expenditure  Depreciation  Amortisation
Yz
(SNERSHE) DEPEE BHHEE BAEREE il i
2010 2010 2010 2010 2010 2010
—E2-%2F  E-FF Z-F2F 22 _2-TF _T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THT THI THAT THT THT
Hong Kong B 224,547 23,548 194,303 H45 3,341 -
Mainland China B ARE 76,002 7,675 212,147 4,773 7,244 364
Other Asian Countries  EfhZMEIR 46,175 5,223 8,804 - = =
America E 128,339 12,091 51,180 - - -
Europe BOM 2,257 256 145 - = =
Reportable segment &S 477,320 48,793 466,579 5,318 10,585 364
Unallocated costs, ROMER -
net of income MRBA (4,1086)
Operating profit E=an 44,687

A reconciliation of total segment assets to the Group's total

assets.

BOMEELENEEREENHIK -

2011 2010

—=E——fF —E—EF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Total segment assets B EPEE 553,861 466,579
Investment property B 13,800 11,000
Deferred tax assets BIET I E E 3,214 2,131
Total assets BEE 570,875 479,710
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf & 3R Mz

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F 1+ - HA=+—HIFF/Z

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. WERDHELR (@)
(CONTINUED)

There is no sales between the reporting segments. s o2 MW AR EHE -
Unallocated costs, net of income, mainly represent corporate ROMER  HRWAXTERAAX
expenses and income from investment property. BRI EFEWA
Revenue of approximately HK$78,542,000 (2010: HK$71,317,000) W #54978,5642,0008 T (= —Z4F
is derived from a single customer. 71,317,000 7)) 2K EE—EHEF -
OTHER INCOME 5. Hftlizs
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Gross rental income from HEMEHESWAERE
investment property - 25
Revaluation surplus on wEYE Z EhBR
investment property 2,800 2,000
Reversal of impairment provision on M - BRE KR
property, plant and equipment 2B B 154 259
Scrap sales EERLHE 2,102 1,865
Interest income FLEWA 309 4
5,365 4,153
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R[5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z —ZF——F+ - HA=+—HIFFZ
OPERATING PROFIT 6. RERF
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the RN B INBR,(BEA) TF &8

following :

2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Amortisation and depreciation : BIHRITE
Amortisation of land use rights + 35 FR AR 4F 364 364
Depreciation of owned property, BEME - BERRETE
plant and equipment 10,611 9,552
Depreciation of property, BIEHE A4
plant and equipment held under BEZYZE - BE
finance lease contracts HiBITE - 1,033
Auditors’ remuneration % EREMEN & 1,414 1,336
Cost of inventories sold HEFERA 317,782 303,207
Net exchange (gain)/loss HNEESF (Ueas), 518 (3,025) 1,000
Operating lease rentals in T RIEFZ
respect of land and buildings KERNES 397 347
Outgoing expenses in respect B IH
of investment property - 2
Loss on disposal of property, HEYZE  HE
plant and equipment KRB EE 92 85
Net loss on derivative MTEeRIAFER
financial instruments 794 -
Written-off of trade receivables FEUIE 5 R SR - 184
Provision for slowing moving inventories 1R &#{E 302 422
Provision for returns RERE 1,081 1,310
Provision for doubtful debts RERE AR 6,859 -
Staff costs (including BIA
directors’ emoluments) (note 12) (BREEEME) (FisE12) 83,579 74,971
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} & R R iz

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F 1+ - HA=+—HIFFZ

FINANCE COSTS 7. HMBEAR
2011 2010
—E——F ZT—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
Interest on bank loans IRITEFRFE
— wholly repayable within five years —BRAFAZEEE 1,532 970
Interest of finance lease contracts MES AR ZHE 52 163
1,584 1,133
TAXATION 8. ®imE
(a) Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate (a) BENESRIBEBEAFE 2G5
of 16.5% (2010:16.5%) on the estimated assessable ERFEM165%(=ZF—FF :
profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has 16.5% ) 2 Tt B - /85N F
been calculated on the estimated assessable profit HIEALEKENBRARAFE Y
for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the o ETFE R B A 1 H 5 7% B A B
countries in which the Group operates. KRBT ERGE -
The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated MR EEmR 2 BFIE
income statement represents :
Restated
KET
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Hong Kong profits tax BBENEH 1,282 3,831
Overseas taxation YBINR IR 1,722 1,944
(Over)/under provision in prior year /i (#8%8), 1 R A& (1,159) 240
Deferred taxation relating to the EREENELR
origination and reversal of B 2 RETIA
temporary differences (note 8(b)) (B4 8(0) (1,620) (215)
225 5,800
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R[5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z —ZE——F+ - HA=+—HILF/Z

8. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8. BiE (@)
(a)  (Continued) (@) (#&)
The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation INES B 7 B BR 5 A e A1 2 F 7H Bl
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise R B AANEHEMGE 2
using the profits tax rate of Hong Kong as follows : WP s =20 ¢
Restated
KB
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBx FHET
Profit before taxation B A5t B A 15,500 43,554
Calculated at a taxation rate BHE1656% (ZZ—F4F :
of 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) 16.5%)stE 2518 2,557 7,186
Income not subject to taxation BERG WA (2,013) (2,985)
Effect of different taxation HMBERTRABRER 2 F 2
rate in other countries 586 945
Expenses not deductible AAHE 2 2
for taxation purposes 162 572
(Over) / under provision in prior year “Ep5i (B%) /T & B (1,159) 240
Others HAth 92 (158)
Taxation charge Gb el 225 5,800
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8.

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

Financial Statements B} &

For the year ended 31st December 2011

8. BiEMO

(b)  The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax (b)

liabilities is as follows:

BEEHEEEMNELHERED
W :

Deferred tax assets to be recovered: Al EREFIBE E ¢
2011 2010
—ET——F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
— Within 12 months +=@AA - -
— More than 12 months wBEt+=EA 3,214 2,131
3,214 2,131

Deferred tax liabilities to be settled: A TRERIBEE
Restated Restated
RED| el
31st December 31st December 1st January
2011 2010 2010
—E——fF —E-TF —E-TF
+=ZA=+—-8B +=-A=+—H —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET T
— Within 12 months +T—EAA - - -
— More than 12 months BB+ =EA 21,769 19,347 16,797
21,769 19,347 16,797
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88

TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(b)

(Continued)

The movement on the net deferred tax liabilities

account is as follows :

FRERIAREREZEHMOT ¢

At 1st January, as
previously reported
Adoption of HKAS12 (Amendment)

At 1st January, as restated
Deferred taxation credited

to the consolidated

income statement (note 8(a))
Deferred taxation charged to

assets revaluation reserve

At 31st December

Perennial International Limited 1885 AR A &

R—RA—H - IAE25

RREEEHEN 12 (E2%0)
MW—H—8 - g&35|
n+)\:£T TE i‘%

ZIRIERIA (M7 8(a)

B ES[FERBELTNA

W+=—A=+—H

Group

AEE
2011 2010
=F——F —TTF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTERT FHT
18,256 15,326
(1,040) (710)
17,216 14,616
(1,620) (215)
2,959 2,815
18,555 17,216




Notes to the Financial Statements Bf & 3R Mz

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F 1+ - HA=+—HIFF/Z

8. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 8. WHE®
(b)  (Continued) (b) (&)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEERE
The movements on the deferred tax liabilities, without EREZERER—HBEREREA
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances e BN IBABEZEH W
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: T
Group
TEE
Tax depreciation and
revaluation surplus
BHEAEREGAL
2011 2010
—2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
At 1st January, as previously reported A—HA—H + ZILAEZ7 21,664 18,466
Adoption of HKAS12 (Amendment) HBEB&H£8112 (&) (1,040) (710)
At 1st January, as restated R—A—H ' &&3| 20,624 17,756
Charged to the consolidated income B4R A Baszk IR
statement 413 513
Deferred taxation charged to MR EEEGREECRLESIE
assets revaluation reserve 2,959 2,815
At 31st December W+=—A=+—H 23,996 20,624
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R[5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #ZE —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFZE

8. TAXATION (CONTINUED)

(b)  (Continued)

Deferred tax assets

The movements on the deferred tax assets, without
taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Tax depreciation
BETE
2011 2010
—3——% “T-TF

HK$'000 ~ HK$'000

BiE (@)
b) (&)
EEBEEE

EREEZRER-—HBEERA
HHSRR  EEHREEZHN

N
Group
r&E
Provisions Total
Bt B
2011 2010 2011 2010

“Z-—-% “Z-TF ZE--Ff —T-Zf
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TART TAT THET THT TERT FET
At 1st January R—A—H 1,898 1,890 1,510 1,250 3,408 3,140
Charged to B3
the consolidated neEBRk
income statement 872 8 1,161 260 2,033 268
At 31st December A+ZA=1—H 2,770 1,898 2,671 1,510 5,441 3,408

There were no material unprovided deferred taxation as at
31st December 2010 and 2011.

9. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The profit for the year is dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company to extent of a profit of
HK$6,793,000 (2010 : HK$12,542,000)
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Notes to the Financial Statements B} &Rz

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F 1+ - HA=+—HIFF/Z

10. DIVIDEND 10. B8
2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT T
Interim, paid, of HK$0.01 G BAR 1 L2
(2010 : HK$0.02) per ordinary share EJL@??EP HARR S,
(ZZT—Z4F : 28l) 1,990 3,980
Final, proposed, of HK$0.02 BRE LHXZ?%M—IZEE%
(2010 : HK$0.05) per ordinary share Ik EEAREARR S
(ZZ—ZF : 578) 3,980 9,950
5,970 13,930
At a meeting held on 23rd March 2012, the Directors R-_E——F=A-_+=H8EF7ze
proposed a final dividend of HK$0.02 per ordinary share. This L EEREERHAREEGR2E
proposed dividend is not reflected as a dividend payable in il o |t TE R B AR B N A4S R
these consolidated financial statements, but will be reflected BHRRPIIEERMNIKRE  EBREE
as an appropriation of retained earnings for the year ending —E——F+_A=+—HLEFERE
31st December 2011. B HIHERB &M 2 DK ©
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R[5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z —ZE——F+ - HA=+—HILF/Z

11.

12.

92

EARNINGS PER SHARE 11.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the Group's profit for the year of HK$15,275,000 (2010
(Restated) : HK$37,754,000) divided by the weighted
average number of 198,958,000 (2010 : 198,958,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

BREF

BREXBFNDIRBEFAZAEE
X F & & 715,275,000 T ( = &
— T F£( K & 5| ) : 37,754,000
T)RBFRNBETEBR 2 NETF
¥ £1198,958,000 8 ( = & — T & :
198,958,000 %) 5t & -

In both 2011 and 2010, diluted earnings per share is the RZE——FERZZT—ZTFE -
same as basic earnings per share due to the absence REEBERELARNRERLER
of dilutive potential ordinary shares as at the end of the A WERESANEESRERR
reporting period. AR o
STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 12. ETHRA(BEEEME)
EMOLUMENTS)
2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Wages, salaries and fringe benefits - TE RFEINERL 79,860 71,781
Social security costs rEEREER A 3,175 2,575
Pension costs - contribution RIRKA — 5815 %
to MPF scheme FTEIEL 2 fEK 379 444
Others HA 165 171
83,579 74,971
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Financial Statements B} 7%

For the yle'ar ended 31st December 2011 #Z —F——4#4+—=-H=

|
13. DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS AND KEY 13. EERGEEEABZHE
MANAGEMENT’'S COMPENSATION
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEFM
The remuneration of each director for the year ended HE-_T——F+=-A=1+—8
31st December 2011 is set out below : IEEFE - BRERESZOFMNT:
Discretionary Other

Name of director Fee Salary bonuses benefits (ii)
EEpg ne E2 mises B3R R (i) A&t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THERT THER TR THET

MON Chung Hung - 4,560 700 48 5,308
Ei i
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 280 318 1,918
Bz
LI Man Wai - 2,124 700 108 2,932
ZUE
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 624 40 370 1,034
L6124
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 324 6 12 342
aEHE
MON Tiffany - 474 40 12 526
hmER
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - 180
BIHREL ()
LEE Chung Nai, Jonesfi) and (iv) 84 - - - 84
ZRE() R (v)
MA Chun Hon, Richard(i) 95 - - - 95
HEE()
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R[5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #ZE —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFZE

13. DIRECTOR’S EMOLUMENTS AND KEY 13. EEREEEBAEBZHE
MANAGEMENT’'S COMPENSATION (&)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) ESFM
The remuneration of each director for the year ended HE_ZT—FTF+_H=+—H
31st December 2010 is set out below: IEFE - BRESOFMOT:
Discretionary Other
Name of director Fee Salary bonuses benefits (i)
ez ko e bl epa E oz (i) CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET AT THET THT TET
MON Chung Hung - 4,560 1,100 12 5,672
hiRlE
KOO Di An, Louise - 1,320 440 12 1,772
[EHik
LI Man Wai - 1,796 1,100 376 3,272
&34
SIU Yuk Shing, Marco - 612 172 364 1,148
B
MON Wai Ki, Vicky - 312 35 12 359
hER
MON Tiffany - 456 219 12 687
mER
CHENG Kwok Kit, Edwin (i) and (iii) 120 - - - 120
SBEIA (i) & (i)
LAU Chun Kay (i) 180 - - - 180
BIHREL()
LEE Chung Nai, Jones (i) and (iv) 42 - - - 42
ZRE() Rv)
MA Chun Hon, Richard (i) 83 - - - 83
BIE (i)
(i) Independent non-executive directors (i) BNIEWMITES
(ii) Other benefits include commission, quarters allowance, travel (i) HOBFeFEHEERAs BmaE
allowance and MPF scheme contribution A - ZHRER MORE R 2 HK
(i) Resigned on 1st July 2010 (il BER=-Z—ZTFLA—H
(iv)  Appointed on 1st July 2010 (iv) ZER=ZT—TFtA—H
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13. DIRECTOR’'S EMOLUMENTS AND KEY
MANAGEMENT’S COMPENSATION

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf & 3R Mz

(CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31st December 2011

(b)

In 2011 and 2010, the five individuals, whose
emoluments were the highest in the Group included

four directors and one senior staff whose emoluments
band is within HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000. The
directors whose emoluments are reflected in the

analysis presented above.

BE—F——F+= A= i

13. ESREEEEABZHE
()

AURSHMAL

W-F——4R-F-F% &
HEBEFWALANTES R
—~EEERAR(MEMEIE
1,000,001 7TE 1,500,000 7T
2M) BEZMEEHREX

Key management compensation (c) EEEEAEZHMH
2011 2010
—B——F —EZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Basic salaries, housing EXFe BEZER -
allowances, other allowances E R R EYF =
and benefits in kind 12,407 12,129
Discretionary bonuses Bi5iEE 1,799 3,246
Pension costs - contribution RIRERAR — 58 TE S
to MPF scheme FTEIEH Z 3R 100 108
14,306 15,483
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year ended 31st December 2011

14. LAND USE RIGHTS

96

o the Financial Statements
BE-F——F+=A=+—HIFE

14. L ibfE AR

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book values are

analysed as follows :

f

AEEZ L EREIFERMREH
SHENEREFESNNAT ¢

Group

rEH
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAxT
At 1st January R—A—H 13,457 13,589
Amortisation of land use rights s PR R 8 (364) (364)
Exchange adjustment [ R R 260 232
At 31st December R+=ZA=+—8 13,353 13,457
2011 2010
—E2——F —T-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT

Outside Hong Kong held on : REINER -

— Leases of between 10 to 50 years HERTZERETFZHE 13,353 13,457
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Financial Statements B 7%

i
For the y(lg'ar ended 31st December 2011 BZ—F——F+=H=

\

15. ¥ - BMERRE

Group
15E
Land and
buildings (note)  Leasehold
THREF(HE)  improve- Plantand Fumitwre  Office  Motor Pleasure
Inside HK Outside HK ~ ments machinery and fixtures equipment  vehicles hoat Total
BER  BRER  BAE
ks 8 &8 B 2B Bt A8 i a%
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén TR TEn  TEn  TER  THn  TER  THEn  TER
Net book value RZF——F-f-H
at 1st January 2011 LEEFHE 97500 84,276 5169 18,685 1,395 4,888 2410 9,652 223975
Additions AE - - 106 1,643 " 1,040 - - 2,800
Disposals HE - - - (72) - (19) (150) - (241)
Depreciation i (2137)  (2039)  (474)  (3557)  (152)  (904)  (426)  (922) (10611)
Revaluation gt 1737 4285 - - - - - - 16022
Exchange adjustment ExgE - 38 (246) 494 (81) 166 32 - 4208
Net book value at RZF——F+24
31st December 2011 o = i 107,00 90,365 455 17,193 1113 51N 1,866 8730 236,153
At31stDecember 2011 WZE——&+=4
=1-f
At cost A - - 8762 90,883 6207 13,09 5335 14,667 138945
At valuation - 2011 fE-2011 107,100 90,365 - - - - - - 197,465
Accumulated depreciation  ZIEHE - - (4207 (73690)  (5034)  (7.920)  (3469)  (5,937) (100,257)
Net book value KEE 107,100 90,365 4555 17,193 11713 51M 1,866 8730 236,153
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Notes to the Financial Statements B &R R[5

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #ZE —F——4#+ - H=+—HIFZE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

98

15. W% - BERRE (@)

(CONTINUED)
Land and
buildings (note) Leasehold
THEET(HE)  impove- Plantand  Fumitre  Office  Motor  Pleasure
Inside HK Qutside HK ~ ments  machinery and fixtures equipment  vehicles hoat Total
BER  GAR AR
i a9 B HE K& *fE ol i bk
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Ter Thir TEr Thr TEr  TEr  TEr  TEr  TEn
Net book value RZZ2-Z5-A-A
at 1st January 2010 LEEFE 91,000 74,983 4987 18972 1,262 5124 2271 10672 209,267
Additions AE - - 867 2,79% 313 513 m - 5318
Disposals & - - - (35) (26) (50) (227) = (338)
Depreciation il (1918 (1,883 [e3) (379 (173) (900) (449 (10200 (1058
Revaluation g 8415 71875 - - - - - - 16,290
Exchange adjustment ExAR - 327 (20) 746 29 141 38 - 4023
Net book value at RZF-FF 1A
31st December 2010 “+-RZEE%E 97,500 84,276 5,169 18,685 1,3% 4,888 2410 9652 223975
At31stDecember 2010 R=F-FE+-A
St
At cost ik - - 8% g6% 6128 11838 58X 14667 134947
At valuation-2010 TBE-2010 97,500 84,276 - - - - - - 181,776
Accumulated depreciation  ETEHTE - - (3627 (890100 (4733 (690) (3413  [(B015)  (92,748)
Net book value KEFE 97,500 84,276 5,169 18,685 1,3% 4,888 2410 9652 223975
Net hook value of REAETE
finance lease assets :
At31stDecember 2011 R=F——F+=4
=+-A - - - - - - - - -
At31stDecember 2010 M=E-FE+-A
=t-8 - - - - - - - 985 958
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Notes to the Financial Statements Bf & 3R Mz

For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F 1+ - HA=+—HIFF/Z

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

note:

Land and buildings in Hong Kong and the Mainland China were revalued by
open market basis or replacement costs valued by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited, an independent firm of chartered surveyors, as at 31st December
2011 and 31st December 2010.

The carrying amount of these land and buildings would have been
HK$58,365,000 (2010: HK$61,794,000) had they been stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation.

At 31st December 2011, the net book value of land and buildings pledged
as security for the Group’s bank loans amounted to HK$107,100,000 (2010:
HK$97,500,000).

Land and buildings are held on leases of between 10 to 50 years.
Included in total depreciation expense is an amount of HK$7,530,000 (2010:

HK$7,607,000) which has been included in “Cost of sales” and HK$3,081,000
(2010: HK$2,978,000) in “Administrative expenses”.

15. Y% - MERRE (@)

=T
=
R

R—ZTE——F+=-_A=+—BR=ZT—TF
FTZA=1+—8 UREBRTFBEAREN LM
REFHBIBEMEMBERTERARIR
ARATEEERSERAZ S °

%55 + it AR F T IR AN E R ITE R RTER
BEEENE IZSHENEZERERS
58,365,000 7L (=ZF —ZF : 61,794,000/
JT) e

RZE——F+=-A=+—H KEEFEEH
107,100,000 7T (=Z—Z4 : 97,500,000/
T ZEMRET - EIERARERPIRITER
Z AR o

T REFHEHR10EL0F °
BITE S HEF 7,530,000 L (T —ZF :
7,607,000 7% 7C) 5T A [#HERK 2 | & 3,081,000

BT (ZT—F4 : 2,978,000 7T) 5 A [T
Fxz] e
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #& k=R {5

For the year ended 31st December 2011

16

100

BHE—FE—— 1 SH= el

INVESTMENT PROPERTY 16. IREWHE
Group
REE
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Net book value at 1st January R—A—HZERmFE 11,000 9,000
Revaluation surplus credited to the EHBHRETAGEEREK
consolidated income statement 2,800 2,000
Net book value at 31st December R+ZA=+—BZEEF*E 13,800 11,000

(a)

Investment property was revalued on the basis of open

market value by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,

an independent firm of chartered surveyors as at 31st
December 2011 and 31st December 2010.

At 31st December 2011, the net book value of
investment property pledged as security for the
Group's bank loans amounts to HK$13,800,000 (2010:

HK$11,000,000).

The Group's interests in investment property are

analysed as follows:

(a)

REWMERBLEEGERME
ERTERATBE-Z ——
E+-f=+—HRER-_ZT—TF
+-A=+—B AMmEZELE
)

R=ZF——%+=-A=+—8"
iR 17 & X LA R T {8 13,800,000
B (=ZZF—Z4F : 11,000,000
BT RIS E M EIERER -

REBzREMERRZ DM
B

2011 2010
—E——F —TTF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FiET
In Hong Kong, held on: RNEBHES :
Lease of between 10 to 50 years HERNtER+E M 13,800 11,000

Perennial International Limited 1E&f&E AR A 7
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RMBATZERE
Company
RKAF
2011 2010
—F——F —TTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Non-current assets EREEE
Unlisted shares, at cost FE_ETMRRMA A 20 20
Amounts due from FEUH I A RIRIE (5T (a)
subsidiaries (note (a)) 62,718 62,718
62,738 62,738
Current assets mENEE
Amounts due from FEMIHT B A TR IE (T EE (b))
subsidiaries (note (b)) 61,439 66,632
note: B E
(a) The amounts due from subsidiaries represent equity funding by (a) JE T BT JB A R SR IB AR AN A R ¥4 AR A Bt
the Company to the respective subsidiaries and are unsecured and BRARLEREREREE
interest-free.
(b)  The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and (b) EKRHEARRESEER 2SR
repayable on demand. AT RER ZSKIEE -
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note ARAalz B ARG EERHNHEES ©
31.
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18. INVENTORIES 18. F&
Group
AEH
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAxT
Raw materials E R 29,494 36,476
Work in progress R 16,665 16,955
Finished goods BURK R 36,766 32,106
82,925 85,5637
Provision for ERTERE
slow-moving inventories (2,385) (2,083)
80,540 83,454
19. TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. EWE SR
At 31st December 2011, the ageing analysis of trade R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H" EK
receivables is as follows: BEERERSTIT ¢
Group
AEH
2011 2010
—E——F —T—TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Current — 3 months BNEAZ= =@ A 99,606 93,741
4 - 6 months mEAZ=NEA 10,364 10,530
Over 6 months BB~ E A 143 101
110,113 104,372
Provision for returns and doubtful debts  RE N REREE (7,936) (1,406)
102,177 102,966
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z _—F——F+ - H=1+—HIFZ

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group's trade receivables are mainly denominated
in HK$ and USD, and are due within one year from the
end of the reporting period. The carrying values of trade
receivables approximate their fair values due to their short
term maturities.

At 31st December 2011, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables which were past due but not impaired is as

follows:

19. BRE Z R (&)

AEEREEZERAEBUBETRE
TLREE RRBEHERBER —F
WNEIH - BRE SRR CREEERL
RAEROREEEES -

R-F——F+ZA=+—H EB&@
4B 3 R (E B IR 5 R 3R 2 Bkl
#rank

Group

rEE
2011 2010
—=E——fF —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Current — 3 months BNEZ==1E A 20,159 17,191
4 - 6 months mEAZESEAR 83 95
Over 6 months iR 7<1E A 67 6
20,309 17,292

The trade receivables included in the above ageing are
considered not impaired as these relate to a number of
independent customers for whom there is no recent history
of default. All impaired overdue trade receivables have been
provided for.

As of 31st December 2011, trade receivables of
HK$7,936,000 (2010: HK$1,406,000) were impaired and
provided for (including provision for doubtful debt of
HK$6,859,000 (2010: HK$Nil)). The credit quality of trade
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired has been
assessed by reference to historical information about the
counterparties’ default rates. The existing counterparties do
not have significant defaults in the past.

A LR EIE 5 RRTETRE
REBRE TREBERNLH B
EFEB- -mECREAHERES
R -

RZE—-——F+=ZA=+—8"
7,936,000 w( = & — T F:
1,406,000 % 7T ) 2 EUE 5 8RR E R
B R EE (B RIRE 6,859,000 %
T(ZZE—TF : &)) - RAEAHSE
ERENESERENEELEREE
MRS FHER L EEELERHED
FE - RENRGUFEREREBE
AHER L8R °
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F+ - HA=+—HILF/Z

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

104

Movements on the provision for trade receivables are as

19. EWE Z R (#)

e E RN B BEE T

follows:
Group
REHE
2011 2010
—E——F T —TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET BT
At 1st January n—A—H 1,406 3,612
Provisions for returns BRE NCRIREE
and doubtful debts 7,940 1,310
Net written off and recoverable F NN BEU B 8H K [0 %
during the year (1,410) (3,516)
At 31st December R+=—A=+—H 7,936 1,406

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of reporting
period is the fair value of the trade receivables mentioned
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security.

Payment terms with customers are mainly on credit with the
exception of new customers, which are on cash on delivery
basis. Invoices are normally payable within 30 to 90 days
of issuance. Longer payment terms might be granted to
customers who have long-term business relationship with
the Group and did not have default in payments in the past
history.

Perennial International Limited 1E&f&E AR A 7
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F1+ - HA=+—HIFF/Z

20. CASH AND CASH EQUILVALENTS 20. BITHEBREE
Group Company
REE KA
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF —E2——F —T-EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FAT FET FAT
Cash at bank and in hand 1T REFRS 108,142 32,610 159 201
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of reporting RBEHERAEAN EERBRERTT
period is cash at bank amounted to HK$107,812,000 "€ 2107,812,0008 t( —F — =
(2010:HK$32,488,000). F : 32,488,000 T) °
Group Company
REE KATF
2011 2010 2011 2010
—=E——fF —E—FF —E——fF —E=—EF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FAET FHxT FAT
Denominated in: HEER :
Hong Kong Dollars PETT 17,281 14,299 159 201
Renminbi (note (a)) AREE (M7 (a) 82,108 3,975 - -
United States Dollars £ 7,331 9,408 - -
Other Currencies HAth 1,422 4,928 - -
108,142 32,610 159 201
(a) Included in the balance of the Group are bank (a) HRELEASEERBEKEZSR
balances and cash deposited in the Mainland China of © &R T 7 4 A 19,233,000
approximately HK$19,233,000 (2010: HK$3,975,000). B ( =& —Z%F : 3,975,000
Bank balances and cash denominated in Renminbi are BIL) c MARBEKSM 2R
subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed TERRIE S TR AR EBAF
by the government in Mainland China. B e 2 INEE FIFR 15 o
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SHARE CAPITAL 21. A
Company
No. of shares HK$'000
BRAREE FHT
Authorised SETERRAN
At 31st December 2011 and 31st RZEBE——F+-A=+—HEK
December 2010, ordinary shares RZE—ZFF+_A=1+—H
of HK$0.10 each BEREEC10B T TEMK 500,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid BT REVERA
At 31st December 2011 and 31st RZBE——F+ZA=+—HEK
December 2010, ordinary shares RZZE—ZF+=-A=+—8"
of HK$0.10 each BREEC10B T TEMK 198,958,000 19,896
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F1+ - HA=+—HIFF/Z

22. RESERVES 22. #E
Group
A58
Land and
Exchange building Capital Total
Share fluctuation  revaluation  redemption other Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total

B8  1HRET &
Biviaf B EERR  REER  HHERRE  REWA i
HKS000  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOD0  HKSOD0  HKSO00  HKS000
TR T T TR T T TR

As at 1st January 2011 RZF-—5-A-A

- 85 previous reported ~ 5 15,385 18,301 87,003 104 121293 219,753 341,046

~ adoption of HKAS12 —RRAAeEAN2

(Amendmen) (note 1.1 (M 1.1) - - - - - 1,040 1,040

As at 1st January 2011 RZ5-—5-A-A

(Restated) (&) 15,885 18301 87,003 104 121,293 220,793 342,086
Profitfor the year KERRR - - - - - 16,275 15,275
Revaluation surplus on TithEF,

land and buildings EffRR - - 15,868 - 15,868 - 15,868
Deferred taxation charged MEERERL

to revaluation reserve EiEHR = = (2959) = (2,959) = (2,959)
Exchange difference BRI

arising from translation HR2iR

of financial statements EEZE

of subsidlaries - 4,801 - - 4,801 - 4801
Dividend paid ke = = = = = (11,940) (11,940)
At 31st December 2011 R_B——F1+ZA=1-H 15,885 23,102 99,912 104 139,003 224128 363,131
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22. RESERVES (CONTINUED)
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22. f#1EE)

Group
458
Land and
Exchange building Capital Total
Share fluctuation  revaluation  redemption other Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
E288  IHRET Ex
RiEE i BftRE REGE  AHES REER L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
Tin T T Tm T T TL
As at 1st January 2010 W_E-F£-A-H
- 85 previous reported ] 1,385 14032 73787 104 103,808 194,269 298077
~ adoption of HKAS12 —RRAAeEA2
(Amendment) (note 1.1} (I3 (s 1.1) - - - - - 70 0
As at 1st January 2010 \E-%5-A-A
(Restated) (@5 15,885 14,032 13,787 104 103,808 194,979 298,787
Profit for the year KEREA
(Restated) (imE5) = = = = - 31,754 31,754
Revaluation surplus on TiRETL
land and buildings BffRR - - 16,031 - 16,031 - 16,031
Deferred taxation charged MEERERL
to revaluation reserve EEsR = = (2815) = (2815) = 2815)
Exchange difference HBLREHSR L
arising from translation R E%ES
of financial statements
of subsidaries - 4,269 - - 4,269 - 4,269
Dividend paid RS = = = = = (11,940) (11,940)
At 31st December 2010 NEE-FETA=1-A 15,885 18,301 87,003 104 121293 220,793 342,086
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For the year ended 31st December 2011

22. f#Em)

Notes to the Financial Statements Bf & 3R Mz

BE—F——F+= A= i

Company
9%
Contributed Capital
Share surplus redemption Total other Retained
premium (note) reserve reserves earnings Total
BARR
kit (W)  EAEERE BEMbGE REEF aE
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thi Thi Thi Thn Thn T
At 1st January 2011 R=F-—£-A-H 15,885 62,548 104 78637 31,016 109,563
Profits for the year FERRR - - - - 6,793 6,793
Dividend paid e = = - - (11,940) (11,940)
At 31st December 2011 RZE—4t-f=1-H 15,885 62,548 104 785371 25,869 104,406
Representing : - fgR: -
2011 final cividend “EEREEY
proposed RS 3980
Others it 21,889
Retained eamings as at HETF——F125
31st December 2011 =T-BIEZRBERH 25,369
At 1st January 2010 RZ2-F5-F-A 15,885 62,548 104 785371 30414 108951
Profits for the year FEREA - - - - 12,542 12,500
Dividend paid e = = = = (11,940) (11,940)
At 31st December 2010 RZ2-5E+ZA=1-R 15,885 62,548 104 78,537 31,016 109,553
Representing - HER: -
2010 final dvidend ZE-EERREY
proposed RERE 9,950
Others Eff 21,066
Retained eamings as at HEZZ-ZHE1CA
31st December 2010 =t-AEZRERH 31,016
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 #ZE —F——4#+ - H=+—HI-FZE

22. RESERVES (CONTINUED)

note: The contributed surplus of the Company arose when the Company fisE « ADEZ A RBERR BT A
issued shares in exchange for the shares of subsidiaries being RBERARRRIRDEEBH AR
acquired in connection with the reorganisation of the Group prior to its A R)_E T AT E AR AN A B T YRR 2 T A
listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, and represents Al Z RO MEL  HERARRBBITR
the difference between the nominal value of the Company's shares a2 EEEMKENB AR 2 EEFE
issued and the value of net assets of the subsidiaries acquired. Under ZEE - BEARE—NN\—FQAE
the Companies Act of 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed () - IARBIES IR TIRE ©
surplus is distributable to the shareholders. At Group level, the EAEBEZEm  MABRBRTEFHE
contributed surplus is reclassified into its component reserves of the BEBMEB AR ZFEEARTSD -

underlying subsidiaries.

23. BORROWINGS

110

23. B

31st December 31st December

2011 2010

—E——F —E—TF

+=-—A=+—-HBH +=ZA=+—H

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FHT

Short-term bank loans RHRITER 56,000 —
Current portion of obligations under THIBE N RE—FAREE

finance lease contracts - 2,056

Trust receipt loans S WIEER 59,681 39,207

Total borrowings BE R 115,681 41,263

Perennial International Limited 1E#f&EE AR A T
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For the year ended 31st December 2011

23. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Total borrowings included secured liabilities of
HK$97,681,000 (2010: HK$41,263,000), which are secured
by land and buildings and investment property of the Group.

(@)  The maturity of borrowings is as follows:

BE—F——F+= A= i

23. B @)

REFBIEFEMFEEI7,681,000/%8
T(ZZ—F4 : 41,263,000/8 7T ) A
NEEN L RIEF RIEEMEER
o

(a) EXMEIEELT
Group

A5H

Obligations under

Short-term finance lease
hank loans Trust receipt loans contracts

BHRTER ERyEER HEANEE
31st December ~ 31stDecember  31stDecember ~ 31stDecember  31stDecember  31stDecember
201 2010 201 2010 201 2010

ZE--f 2% ZE--f 2% ZE--f 2%

tZR=t-B = tZA=t-B  fIB=t-8 | TZASt-A tZR=t-B  fZA=T-H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T ThL TERL ThL TR T
Within 1 year 16/ 56,000 - 59,681 39,207 - 2,056
Between 1.and 2 years 1525R - - - - - -
Between 2 and 5 years R - - - - - -
Wholl repayable within years 5 EREHESE 56,000 - 59,681 39,207 - 2,056
Qver b years i F - - - - - -
Total borrowings BER 56,000 - 59,681 39,207 - 2,056

(b) The average effective interest rates at the end of

reporting period are as follows:

(o) MIREHIERH T HERF =X

s

2011 2010

—g——5 | —2-%F

Short-term bank loans REHEIRTTE R 1.86% =
Obligations under finance TS Ay

lease contracts - 6.01%

Trust receipt loans EFEYUREE R 1.95% 1.80%
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F+ - HA=+—HILF/Z

23. BORROWINGS (CONTINUED) 23. EF (@)

(c) The present value of obligations under finance lease (c) mMEEEAGEMRMELT
contracts is as follows:

Group
REE
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—TF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Gross finance lease liabilities — RMEHEBEERE—
minimum lease payments: AT FER
No later than 1 year TR F - 2,107
Later than 1 year and no HBiE1 FETEBEL F
later than 5 years - =
Later than 5 years A5 F - =
- 2,107
Future finance changes on REERERN ARG S E R
finance lease - (51)
Present value of finance RIEHEMRE
lease liabilities - 2,056
(d) Borrowings are mainly denominated in Hong Kong (d) ERFEUBTHEE -
dollars.
(e) The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate to (e) EFMERMELEAQALEMEE -

their fair values.
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24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 24, ERESRIE  HthENRKIE
AND ACCRUALS REGRX
Group Company
rEE NG
2011 2010 2011 2010
B ZE-THF —ET——-% ZT-ITF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FAT
Trade payables (note(a)) FERTE 53038 (KT (a) 29,621 33,194 - =
Other payables and accruals ~ EMERNFIBR ETFHEX 19,983 21,575 263 332
Total (note (b) and (c)) #4828 (i 7E (b) & () 49,604 54,769 263 332
(a) At 31st December 2011, the ageing analysis of trade (@) R=FB-——F+-A=+—8"
payable is as follows: ERNE SRR KR DM -
Group
REE

2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAxT
Current — 3 months BIHE={E A 24,032 27,422
4 — 6 months Pa1E A =75 E A 5,098 4,002
Over 6 months BB 76 A 491 1,770
29,621 33,194
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 #ZE —F——4#+ - H=+—HI-FZE

24. TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 24. ENESZFIE  HMENSFIE
AND ACCRUALS (CONTINUED) R FERTBE X (#)
(b) Trade payables, other payables and accruals are (b) ENBESHRIE - HitEARER
denominated in the following currencies: FERrRAS AT EMEETE
Group Company
TEE PN
2011 2010 2011 2010

2% —T-TF -B--% T TF
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T FAT TR FET

United States Dollars ETT 9,648 12,611 - =
Hong Kong Dollars T 22,057 24,334 263 332
Renminbi AR 17,366 16,065 - =
Other Currencies HiEH 533 1,759 - =
49,604 54,769 263 332
(c)  The carrying values of trade payables, other payables (o) ENEZHIE - HMENKIER
and accruals approximate their fair values due to their FERTA S 2 BREEEE QR EE
short term maturities. AAEFEEH -
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z - ZE——F1+ - HA=+—HIFF/Z

25. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS . PTEEmTIA
Group
TEE
2011 2010
—E——F —TTF
Liabilities Liabilities
aE =L
HK$'000 HK$" 000
FET FHIT
Forward foreign exchange REPNEEH —ARER
contracts — held for trading 794 -
The Group entered into forward foreign exchange contracts & E IR 1T R] 3 iR BANE & A) AR R
with banks to sell and buy United States dollars in exchange HRE ﬁ%EMER/\E% CHEEH
for Renminbi at predetermined rates, settled for operating EAEERR NRZTE——F+=
use. As at 31st December 2011, the notional amounts of A=+—H ﬂifa BRHANESH R
the outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are 67,672,000 BT (ZF—TF : &)
HK$67,672,000 (2010: HK$NIL) which will be expired in BRZE——FNLAER °
September 2012.
The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts are REHLERE  BEIESHDR
determined using quoted forward exchange rates at the end BEERERERBERMATE -

of the reporting period.
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26.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 26. mEBRERERMNE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net (a) EEELENESZHE
cash generated from operations
2011 2010
—E——F —E-EF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHT
Profit before taxation FRE A A 15,500 43,554
Interest income FLEMA (309) (4)
Bank loan interest RITEFRFIE 1,532 970
Interest element of finance lease HEE K2 T &5
contracts 52 163
Loss on disposal of property, HEYZE - BEREEFER
plant and equipment 92 85
Revaluation surplus on investment &YX E (L&A
property (2,800) (2,000)
Reversal of impairment provision on 42 - /= & REE < [
property, plant and equipment (154) (259)
Amortisation of land use right B SE - (E AR 364 364
Depreciation of owned property, BEVX  WERKEZITE
plant and equipment 10,611 9,552
Depreciation of property, plant REEBE A 2 M
and equipment held under B L& ITE
finance lease contracts - 1,033
Net loss on derivative TSR ITAFER
financial instrument 794 -
Operating profit before working LB B A 2 AL A
capital changes 25,682 53,458
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL, /() 2,914 (19,042)
Decrease/(increase) in trade JEUE 5 8RR - E M EUERK -
receivables, other receivables, 2] RIBFRIEE N
deposits and prepayments 1,593 (21,109)
(Decrease)/increase in trade FERE S RIE - H R KR
payables, other payables and FERTRASE (i), /45N
accruals (5,165) 3,721
Net cash generated from operations “iE@EARIES 25,024 17,028
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For the year ended 31st December 2011 #Z —F——F1+=-H=+—

) i
26. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 26. KEHRERERMT (@)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
(b) Analysis of changes in financing during the (b) FRAMESBDM
year

Obligations under

Long-term Short-term finance lease
hank loans hank loans Trust receipt loans contracts
REROER RERGER EMEER HREHAE

a1 2010 a0 2010 am 2010 am 200
“R-f 0 FRF CR-F CRRF R CRRF R IR R
HKS000 ~ HKSO00  HKS000  HKSO00  HKSO00 ~ HKSOOO  HKsoo0 ~ HKSOO
TER AR TER AR TER AR TR TéR

At st January R-A-A - 252 - - 39,207 2,330 2,056 4,283
Addition of loans SR - - 56,000 29503 226,031 - -
Repayment of loans EEEH - (252) - (219,029) (211,154 - -
Repayment of capita [BERERY

element of finance lease ~ ZEAH(

contracts - - - - - - (2,056) 2.21)
At 31st December RTZA=1-H - - 56,000 - 59,681 39,207 - 2,066
27. COMMITMENTS 27. EiE
(a) Capital commitment (a) BEAREE
At 31st December 2011, the Group had the following RZFE——F+=ZA=+—8 "
capital commitment for leasehold improvements and AEBBATREREE RS
plant and machinery: 2B -

2011 2010

—F——F —TTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Contracted but not provided for SHEVEESET: 2,248 1,289
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27. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 27. EIE (GE)
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) REHEHRIE
At 31st December 2011, the Group had future R=ZZE—F+=-A=+—8"
aggregate minimum lease payments under non- AEBBNIHHEEEHENH
cancellable operating leases as follows : Bz &EESIT
Land and buildings
T RiEF
2011 2010
—E——F —T-TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHT
Not later than one year —FR 20 18
Later than one year and not —FRETZHRAF
later than five years - -
20 18
(¢) The Company did not have any other significant () R=ZT—F+=-A=+—HK
commitments at 31st December 2011 and 31st —E—TF+-A=+—H " ' XK
December 2010. NI Y=y, wE S i
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28. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES AND PLEDGE 28. RITALE

At 31st December 2011 the Group's banking facilities RZE——F+=-A=+—80 ' &&
amounting to approximately HK$265,810,000 (2010: [#49265,810,000 BT (ZE—FF :
HK$203,056,000) were secured by the following: 203,056,000 7T ) Z SR1T R E A T 51
TH B EEHR
(a) legal charges over certain land and buildings and (@ AEEBENE®EFMES &
investment properties of the Group with a total net book 120,900,000 BIL(ZZT—FF :
value of HK$120,900,000 (2010: HK$108,500,000); 108,500,000/ L) 2 & THEL
i REFRIREMEIEZ AT
Eiv il
(b)  adeed of guarantee executed by the Company amounting (b) ARBEZBEZ —MNERZEES K
to HK$145,000,000 (2010: HK$96,000,000). 145,000,000 BL(ZZT—ZF :

96,000,000 B 7T) °

29. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY 29. RAER DT
The Directors of the Company regard Spector Holdings RABEERABTERBRE LS EM
Limited, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, A3 2 Spector Holdings Limited Jh#x
as being the ultimate holding company. RIERRAE]

30. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 30. KEMBBRR2AE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The consolidated financial statements were approved by KB BHRRENR =T —=—F=A
the Board of Directors on 23rd March 2012. ZtH=HEESEHE -
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o) PN

R-B——F+-"A=+—H &2
AR T EZMBRRFERD

31. SUBSIDIARIES 31.

At 31st December 2011, the Company held major

investments or capital in the following subsidiaries :

120

Place of

incorporation /

Paid up share capital /

Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
A% /RIS RMEREERER TEXEK i
2011 2010
Shares held directly
EERER®G
Perennial Holdings Global  British Virgin Ordinary US$1 Investment holding 100% 100%
Limited Islands @R 1ET RERK
ERRUHES
Shares held indirectly
BERER G
Ever Peak Development Hong Kong Ordinary HK$3 Property holding 100% 100%
Limited Bk EERIBT RENF
KHBERERAF
Glitter Wire & Cable Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500 Inactive 100% 100%
Company, Limited 9 LAY 500 BT EED
RESHEEERAA Non-voting deferred
HK$2,000,000
EREERTRN
2,000,000 &7T
New Technology Cable Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1,000 License holding 100% 100%
Limited &R AR 1,000757T FAIRR
R ERARAA Non-voting Deferred
HK$10,000,000
ERZRETK
10,000,000 BT
Perennial Cable Harness Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 Inactive 100% 100%
Company Limited B A% 10,0005 7T ®EE)

BEBEIERAR
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31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31. B A= (&)

Place of

incorporation / Paid up share capital /

Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
% 2R/ Ry BERESEREX TEER R
201 2010
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BEREERS @)
a Perennial Cable (H.K.) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2,000,000 Manufacturing and sale of 100% 100%
Limited B L3RR 2,000,000 7T electric cables, wires,
BHER(BE)BRAA wire hamness and accessories
SERHESR B
BB SRR
Perennial Cable Limited British Virgin Ordinary US$1 Investment and property holding, ~ 100% 100%
EREEEBEAH Islands AT =TT trading of electric cable, wires,
RERIES wire hamness and accessories
RERSENE EESR -
B BABRREN
b Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) ~ Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing of electric cables, ~ 100% 100%
Co., Limited (wholly FREIARE HK$65,000,000 wires and wire harness
owned foreign enterprise) HEfER REEE  BRIAAKRE
BRERORY)BRAF 65,000,000 77T
(2BHERBIMERE)
a Perennial Plastics (H.K.) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 Manufacturing and sale of plastic ~ 100% 100%
Limited & LRk 2 BT resins and compounds
BHER(BH) BRAH SUERSHERB AKX
CL/|
Perennial Cable (BVI) British Virgin Ordinary US$50,000 Investment holding 100% 100%
Limited Islands @Ik 50,0007 REER
BHEF(BV)BERARF REERZHS
New Technology Cable United Kingdom Ordinary GBP1 License holding 100% 100%
(UK) Limited G LA 1 R HEER
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31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

122

Place of

incorporation /

FFr-A=1—HIFE

Paid up share capital /

31. MR F (8

Name establishment registered capital Principal activities Interest
a8 B/ RIS MEREERER TEEK i 4
2011 2010
Shares held indirectly (Continued)
BEEERS @)
New Technology Cable Pte.  Singapore Ordinary SG$2 License holding 100% 100%
Limited AR TRR 23T T FAIRR
Shinka K.K. Japan Ordinary JPY10,000,000  License holding 100% 100%
BA T3/AR 10,00,000 A 7T FRIER
Perennial USA Inc. USA Ordinary USD0.5 Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
%E LREK0S5ET wires, wire harness and
accessories
EEER B HEER
KAt
Shenzhen Welldone Trading  Mainland China Registered capital Trading of electric cables, 100% 100%
Co., Limited (wholly NS HKD$1,000,,000 wires, wire harness and
owned foreign AR accessories
enterprise) 1,000,0007%7C BEER &k @aRX
AYEEEEE5ERDA KA
(2BHEREIMERE)
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics  Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing and sale of 100% -
and Metal Co., Limited R B RE HKD$40,000,,000 electric cables, wires, wire
{wholly owned foreign AR harness and accessories
enterprise) 40,000,000 7T HERHERR G
AIESEBRREBERAR A GRRE
(2BHHEIMEE)
Shenzhen Perennial Plastics ~ Mainland China Registered capital Manufacturing and sale of 100% -
Co., Limited (wholly B ARE HKD$10,000,,000 plastic resins and compounds

owned foreign

enterprise)

ANERZBER AR
(RERABBIMNERE)

AR
10,000,000 &7
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31. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 31. B AT &)

The legal form of all the above companies is limited liability LB ATIRERAGNALE -

company.

Save as noted below, the above companies operate BRUA TN EEBRSN - Bl A A 2 & 38 i Bh

principally in Hong Kong instead of their respective places FEAFBMIEEL@ERIEM, At

of incorporation/establishment, except for: 2

a Perennial Cable (H.K.) Limited and Perennial Plastic a EFELR (BE) BRA R REH
(H.K.) Limited of which manufacturing activities are BB (FB)BRA R ZREER
conducted by their appointed sub-contractors in ThiE R E AR AMBRY R
Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China. BN BT

b Perennial Cable (Shenzhen) Co., Limited, Shenzhen b BHRELCRIDBRAA - FY
Welldone Trading Co., Limited, Shenzhen Perennial 1B EE AR AT RINMEH
Plastics and Metal Co., Limited and Shenzhen BRASBRARRRY|EGHRE
Perennial Plastics Co., Limited in Shenzhen, the BER QAR EARLMBER
People’s Republic of China. Y4 o

@ Perennial USA Inc. in USA. c Perennial USA Inc. AEH
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2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—2-—% -T-TF “TTHF “TT/\F -TTLF

Operating results (HK$'000) REEE(THET)

Revenue Wz 472,445 477,320 411,192 507,628 470,496
Operating profit BT 17,084 44,687 36,280 29,684 32,546
Profit for the year ANEE R A 15,275 37,754 29,634 22,294 24,398

Financial position (HK$'000) FHEAMR (FHET)

Net current assets BV EEFE 135,652 129,613 103,252 78,663 63,984
Shareholders’ funds BRES 383,027 361,982 318,683 236,411 212,686
Per share data (HK$ Cent) B 2R CGB4L)
Earnings per share — basic BREMN -EXREE

and diluted 7.7 19.0 14.9 1.2 12.3
Dividend per share (interim SRS (REX

and final dividend) REARRE.) 3 7 6 5 4
Key Statistics FEH
Inventory turnover (days) FERE (RE) 93 101 98 72 89
Debtors' turnover (days) PR B (RE) 79 79 78 77 90
Creditors’ turnover (days) FETER 8 (K& 35 38 49 34 58
Acid-test ratio (%) REELE (%) 133.2% 146.9% 147.8% 108.7% 89.7%
Working capital (%) BIEES (%) 181.7%  231.7%  227.0%  168.0%  138.7%
Total liabilities/total capital BaE/ 1BER

employed (%) B (%) 49.0% 32.5% 31.4% 54.0% 84.8%
Return on capital employed 18 F B A TR ==

(operating profit/shareholders’ — (&&& M),/ IRE

funds) (%) BEE)(%) 4.5% 12.3% 11.4% 12.6% 15.3%
Return on average total assets ~ FHAE ERE =X

(profit after taxation/average (BBBRR T

total assets) (%) BEE) (%) 2.9% 8.4% 7.2% 5.9% 6.7%
Comparative figures in 2010 and 2009 have been restated to reflect the T EER _ETAFHREFTELET
adoption of HKAS 12 (Amendment). NRMEEAES SR 12 (B2h) -
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